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2019 135,394 14,734.93 104.63 11,387
2019 141,930 15,446.24 105.39 11,470
2019 145,643 15,850.33 105.44 11,475
2019 154,422 16,805.75 108.80 11,841
2019 158,913 17,294 .50 107.46 11,695
2019 10 173,529 18,885.16 107.06 11,651
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2019 11 30
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
USD USD
5 5 $175,127,882  \19,059,167 $109,707,085  \11,939,422
2.1 5,474,108 595,747 2,859,727 311,224
- - 21,950 2,389
2.10
2 2,836,050 308,647 182,728 19,886
183,438,040 19,963,562 112,771,490 12,272,921
04 1,000,000 108,830 - -
8.2C 303,034 32,979 337,384 36,718
8.1E 74,110 8,065 69,908 7,608
8.2B 57,164 6,221 97,386 10,599
36,256 3,946 22,504 2,449
8.1A 31,638 3,443 9,668 1,052
8.18 14,549 1,583 5,919 644
8.1D 6,215 676 1,185 129
8.2F 2,858 311 4,890 532
1,162 126 - -
421 46 - -
2.8
2 10 - - 211,303 22,996
- - 1,853 202
1,527,407 166,228 762,000 82,928

$181,910,633

\19,797,334

$112,009,490

\12,189,993
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2019 11 30
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
UsD UsD
)
2.11 $4,744,380 \516,331  $4,197,121 \456,773
2.11 58,235 6,338 24,580 2,675
(59,188) (6,441) (467,241) (50,850)
2.11 7
9,335,436 1,015,976  (4,345,689) (472,941)
2.2 2.11 7

2.6 168 18 539 59
14,079,031 1,532,221 (590, 690) (64,285)
8.2C 953,634 103,784 804,311 87,533
8.1C 346,028 37,658 291,417 31,715
8.2B 276,822 30,127 233,134 25,372
8.2F 113,870 12,392 11,657 1,269
8.1A 84,879 9,237 69,941 7,612
8.1E 58,700 6,388 72,658 7,907
8.1B 39,633 4,313 39,773 4,328
8.1D 25,040 2,725 24,480 2,664
24,484 2,665 149,037 16,220
7,936 864 11,162 1,215
1,162 126 1,622 177
25 3 - -
1,932,213 210,283 1,709,192 186,011

12,146,818 1,321,938 (2,299,882) (250,296)

$12,146,818 \1,321,938  $(2,299,882) \(250,296)

D FVTPL
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2019 11 30
UsD

2017 11 30 $88,543,809 \9,636,223
3 50,060,299 5,448,062
2.8 (22,888,613) (2,490, 968)
2.7 (1,406,123) (153,028)
(2,299,882) (250, 296)
2018 11 30 $112,009,490 \12,189,993
3 70,099,404 7,628,918
2.8 (10,755,611) (1,170,533)
2.7 (1,589,468) (172,982)
12,146,818 1,321,938
2019 11 30 $181,910,633 \19,797,334
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2019 11 30
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
UsD UsD

$12,146,818  \1,321,938  $(2,299,882)  \(250,296)
(58,844,379)  (6,404,034) (43,697,122)  (4,755,558)
2,699,998 293,841 14,300,000 1,556,269
(168) (18) (539) (59)
59,188 6,441 467,241 50,850
(9,335,436)  (1,015,976) 4,345,689 472,941
21,950 2,389 88,449 9,626
1,000,000 108,830  (3,900,000) (424.,437)
©) (23,290) (2,535) 389,412 42,380
(52,275,319)  (5,689,123) (30,306,752)  (3,298,284)
67,446,082 7,340,157 56,016,126 6,096,235
(10,966,914)  (1,193,529) (22,707,775)  (2,471,287)
(1,589,468) (172,982)  (1,406,123) (153,028)
54,889,700 5,973,646 31,902,228 3,471,919
2,614,381 284,523 1,595,476 173,636
)1 2,859,727 311,224 1,264,251 137,588
$5,474,108 \595,747  $2,859,727 \311,224

2.1

721243



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 11 30

2019 11 30 2018 11 30
USD USD
$58,235 \6,338 $24,580 \2,675
$4,744,380 \516,331 $4,197,121 \456,773

¢
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2019 11 30

2013 12 2
11
2016 10 3

2016 11 16

2014 1 22

KY1-9007
190 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-
9007, Cayman Islands

DS
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2019 11 30
1933
1940
Baa3/BBB-
Baa3/BBB-
Bal/BB+

2019 11 30 2018 11 30

84.0% 77.2%
3 A B
C
A B C
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2019 11 30
2163 12 1
(D
300
(i)
1
1 25
1
1
1
2020 5 xx
2.
IFRS IFRS
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2019 11 30
IFRS 10  IFRS 12 IAS 27 2012
2019 11 30
@
2018 12 1 IFRS 9 IFRS 9
IAS 39
(i) IFRS 9
IFRS 9
IAS 39
IFRS 9 1AS 1
_ 1AS 39
IFRS 9
IFRS 9 3
FVTPL

FVOCI IFRS 9
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2019 11 30
IFRS 9 IAS 39
IFRS 9
IAS 39 IFRS 9
2018 12 1 1AS
39 IFRS 9
1AS 39 IFRS 9 1AS 39 IFRS 9
FVTPL FVTPL
$ 109,707,085 $ 109,707,085
2,859,727 2,859,727
21,950 21,950
182,728 182,728
$ 112,771,490 $ 112,771,490
1AS 39 IFRS 9 1AS 39 IFRS 9
$ 337,384 $ 337,384
211,303 211,303
97,386 97,386
69,908 69,908
22,504 22,504
9,668 9,668
5,919 5,919
4,890 4,890
1,185 1,185
1,853 1,853
$ 762,000 $ 762,000
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2019 11 30
2018 12 1 IFRS 9 1AS 39 IFRS
9
IAS 39 2018 IFRS 9 2018
11 30 12 1
$ 2,859,727 $ - 3 - $ 2,859,727
21,950 - - 21,950
182,728 - - 182,728
$ 3,064,405 $ - $ - $ 3,064,405
- 2018 12 1
FVTPL
FVTPL
)
i) SPPI)
D)) SPPI
i)
iii)FVTPL
FVTPL
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2019 11 30

SPPI
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2019 11 30
- 2018 12 1
2018 12 1 IFRS 9
IFRS 9 IAS 39 ECL

FVOCI
IFRS 9 IAS 39
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2019 11 30
FVTPL
12
IFRS 9
- IFRS 9
2018 12 1
2018 IFRS 9 IAS 39

FVTPL
2019 11 30
2018 12 1
2.1
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2019 11 30
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
2019 2018
$ 3,913 $ 3,105
5,470,195 2,856,622
$ 5,474,108 $ 2,859,727
2.2
A
FVTPL
2019 11 30 - 2019 11 30 -
$ 175,127,882 $ 169,779,548
2018 11 30 - 2018 11 30 -
$ 109,707,085 $ 113,694,187
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
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2019 11 30
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2019 11 30
F
)
(i) (iii)
(iv)
7 00
1 10,000
2.3

2019 11 30 2018 11 30
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2.4

2.5

2.6

2.4
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2019 11 30

2.7

(i) (i)
(O]

2019 11 30 2018 11 30

2019 2018

A $ 1,589,468 $ 1,406,123
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2019 11 30

2.8

IAS 32

2019 11 30 2018 11 30
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2019 11 30
2.9
2.10
2.11 FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL
7
FVTPL
2.12
2063 12 2

2019 11 30 2018 11 30
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2019 11 30

IAS 12

2019 11 30 2018 11 30

2.13
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2019 11 30
3.
1
1
1 100
2 5
2019 11 30 1
1
A $ 181,910,633 1,703,969 $ 106.7570
2018 11 30 1
1
A $ 112,009,490 1,140,213 $ 98.236

2019 11 30 2018 11 30 1
100%
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2019 11 30

%

1 2.00%
1 2 1.60%
2 3 1.20%
3 4 0.80%
4 5 0.40%
5
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2019 11 30
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
2018 11 30 2019 11 30
A $114,788,375 $70,099,404 $(10,755,611) $174,132,168
$114,788,375 $70,099,404 $(10,755,611) $174,132,168
2017 11 30 2018 11 30
A $87,616,689 $50,060,299 $(22,888,613) $114,788,375
$87,616,689 $50,060,299 $(22,888,613) $114,788,375
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2019 11 30
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
2018 11 30 2019 11 30
A 1,140,213 668,533 (104,777) 1,703,969
1,140,213 668,533 (104,777) 1,703,969
2017 11 30 2018 11 30
A 873,602 498,099 (231,488) 1,140,213
873,602 498,099 (231,488) 1,140,213
1
4.
5.

5.1

94/243



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 11 30

Q)

IMF
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2019 11 30
2019 11 30
2019 11 30 ™)
JPY $ - -8 421) $ 421) 0.0%
_ - (421) (@21 0.0%
usD 5,474,108 175,127,882 1,309,064 181,911,054 100.0%
$ 5,474,108 175,127,882 $ 1,308,643 $ 181,910,633 100.0%
2018 11 30
2018 11 30 ®
JPY $ - -8 20,007 $ 20,097 0.0%
- - 20,007 20,007 0.0%
usD 2,859,727 109,707,085 (577,419) 111,989,393 100.0%
$ 2,859,727 109,707,085 $ (557,322) $ 112,009,490 100.0%
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
/
2019
JPY +/- 3.59% +/- 3 15
2018
JPY +/- 1.21% +/- 3 243
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2019 11 30

(i)

2019 11 30 2018 11 30 50

27,351 14,283
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2019 11 30
'dD)
2019 11 30 2018 11 30 1%
1,751,279 1,097,071
1%
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
B
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2019 11 30
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
2019 11 30
2018 11 30
A+
2019 11 30
%
* %

Aaa 5.5%
Aal 5.9%
Aa2 23.1%
Aa3 18.4%
AL 21.6%
A2 13.9%
A3 2.0%
Baal 4.4%
Baa2 1.7%
Baa3 1.5%

98.0%
* S&P Moody*s Investor Service
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2019 11 30
2018 11 30
%
* %

Aaa 5.7%
Aal 7.4%
Aa2 22.9%
Aa3 20.3%
AL 21.0%
A2 12.9%
A3 1.6%
Baal 5.2%
Baa2 1.3%
SP-1+ 0.2%

98.5%
* S&P Moody*s Investor Service

C
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2019 11 30
2019 11 30 1 1 3
$ 1,000,000 $ - $ 1,000,000
303,034 - 303,034
74,110 - 74,110
57,164 - 57,164
36,256 - 36,256
31,638 - 31,638
14,549 - 14,549
6,215 - 6,215
2,858 - 2,858
1,162 - 1,162
421 - 421
$ 1,527,407 $ - $ 1,527,407
2018 11 30 1 1 3
$ 337,384 % - $ 337,384
211,303 - 211,303
97,386 - 97,386
69,908 - 69,908
22,504 - 22,504
9,668 - 9,668
5,919 - 5,919
4,890 - 4,890
1,185 - 1,185
1,853 - 1,853

$ 762,000 $ - $ 762,000
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2019 11 30

15%
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
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2019 11 30

5.2
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2019 11 30

2019 11 30 2018 11 30
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2019 11 30

2019 11 30 2018 11 30

2163 12 1
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2019 11 30

5.3
IFRS 13
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2019 11 30
3
2019 11 30
2019 11 30
1 2 3
$ - 3 175,127,882 $ -3 175,127,882
$ - $ 175,127,882 $ -3 175,127,882
2018 11 30
2018 11 30
1 2 3
$ -8 109,707,085 $ -3 109,707,085
$ - $ 109,707,085 $ -3 109,707,085
2019 11 30 2018 11 30 1 2 3
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2019 11 30
2 2
/
/
2
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
(i) 2019 11 30 2018 11 30
2
5.4
2019 11 30 2018 11 30 22,835,016,826
208,558,013 16,126,211,686 142,043,616 2019 11 30
22,926,487,085
22,981,915,799 55,428,714 2018 11 30
15,971,717,848
15,995,504,867 23,787,019
2019 11

30 2018 11 30
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2019 11 30
2
6.
100%
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
7.
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
$ (59,020) $ (466,702)
(168) (539)
$ (59,188) $ (467,241)
/ $ 9,335,436  $ (4,345,693)
- 4
$ 9,335,436 $ (4,345,689)
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2019 11 30
8.
8.1

A

0.06% 5 0.05% 10
0.04%
3,750 2019 11 30 2018 11 30
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
B
2019 11 30 2018 11 30 2019

11 30 2018 11 30

C

0.25%
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
D
0.01% 1
10 2019 11 30 2018 11 30
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
E
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
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2019 11 30
8.2
A
10,000
2019 11 30 2018 11 30 2019 11 30
2018 11 30
B
0.20%
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
0.32%
C
0.12%
0.57%
2019 11 30 2018 11 30

2019 11 30 2018 11 30
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2019 11 30
(D
(i1)
Gii)
25
365
D
5,000
E
0.01%
2019 11 30 2018 11 30

2019 11 30 2018 11 30
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2019 11 30
9.
10%
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
10.
2020 1
2019 11 30
2020 5 12
2019 12 1 2020 5 12 $23,532,835 $10,762,079

901,041
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2019 12 31
( )

(  \22,634,151,435) \ 23,084,013,933
( \652,678) 652,678
1,141,284

207,233,007
23,293,040,902

39,868,645

17,930,215
4,526,646
3,664,066
2,531,477
2,034,691
1,346,561

48,256

71,950,557

\ 23,221,090,345

\ 3,471,758,117
45,190,898

19,704,141,330

\ 23,221,090,345

384,359
4,615
17,620,299

9,033
9,792
\ 1,118
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2019 12 31
( )

\ 638,618,951
638,618,951

60,923,951
9,519,373
6,240,369
4,349,658
3,799,891
2,958,518
1,011,897

88,803,657

549,815,294

C ) C )

C )
(12,355,052)
47,803,882
35,448,830

C )
802,717,038
(120,989, 225)
681,727,813

717,176,643

\ 1,266,991,937
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(

/(

/C

\ 549,815,294
35,448,830
681,727,813
1,266,991,937
(659,504,567)
6,760,094,567
7,367,581,937
15,853,508,408
\ 23,221,090, 345
410,820 6,713 11,308,276
42,927 8,752 5,979,993
13,582 235 483,990
(82,970) (11,085) (151,960)
(26,461) (2,098) 6,312,023
384,359 4,615 17,620,299
386,000,000  \ 84,800,000 \  6,655,890,000
122,549,009 2,269,480 534,686,078
(751,400,000) (107,600,000) (167,100,000)
(242,850,991)  \ (20,530,520) \  7,023,476,078
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2019 12 31
( )

\ 8,843 \ 9,430 \ 1,075

* 262 281 32

/( ) 228 441 50

490 722 82

(300) (360) (39)

\ 9,033 \ 9,792 \ 1,118

- 5. 60%*** 7.77% 7.75%
\  3,471,758,117 \ 45,190,898  \  19,704,141,330

0.47% 0.47% 0.47%

2.90% 2.90% 2.88%

*k
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2019 12 31
(96.5%)
(9.6%)
(9-6%)
American University
usb 1,000,000 3.12% 10/01/27 (@ \ 111,580,559
Baptist Health Obligated Group
1,000,000 3.57% 12/01/34(a) 107,893,109
Baylor Scott & White Holdings
360,000 3.10% 11/15/25(a) 40,517,188
Boston Medical Center Corp.
1,000,000 3.91% 07/01/28 110,132,250
Century Housing Corp.
1,250,000 3.82% 11/01/20 137,553,463
Common Spirit Health
8,000,000 4.19% 10/01/49(a) 86,912,616
Jackson Laboratory
1,400,000 3.29% 07/01/23 157,451,655
2,000,000 3.64% 07/01/25 229,146,331
Kaiser Foundation Hospitals
2,900,000 3.15% 05/01/27 @ 329,178,697
1,000,000 3.27% 11/01/49(a) 109,060,967
Low Income Investment Fund
400,000 3.39% 07/01/26(a) 43,868,030
Mercy Health
1,600,000 3.56% 08/01/27(a) 179,907,521
Mount Sinai Hospitals Group, Inc.
1,000,000 3.74% 07/01/49(a) 108,338,611
Providence Health System
1,000,000 5.39% 10/01/30 127,394,246
Providence St Joseph Health Obligated Group
1,000,000 2.53% 10/01/29(a) 106,699,900
SSM Heal th Care Corp.
2,250,000 3.69% 06/01/23 (@ 255,091,143
2,198,471,115 2,240,726,286
2,198,471,115 2,240,726,286
(86.9%)
(86.9%)
American Municipal Power, Inc., Revenue Bonds
UsD 35,000 7.20% 02/15/29 5,084,517
370,000 7.73% 02/15/33 57,853,442
Belding Area Schools, General Obligation Bonds
500,000 2.63% 05/01/21 54,726,609
California Educational Facilities Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.11% 04/01/28 @ 112,942,291
1,500,000 3.79% 04/01/42 @ 166,859,383
California Housing Finance, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.66% 02/01/29 ® 114,010,418
California State Public Works Board, Revenue Bonds
475,000 7.80% 03/01/35 73,679,304
Central Puget Sound Regional Transit Authority Revenue Bonds
305,000 5.49% 11/01/39 43,592,078
City of Amarillo TX, Revenue Bonds
300,000 3.40% 08/15/24 34,360,574
550,000 3.65% 08/15/26 64,463,360
505,000 3.85% 08/15/28 (@ 59,137,504
545,000 3.95% 08/15/29 @ 63,917,599
250,000 4.05% 08/15/31 ® 29,250,729
1,815,000 4.20% 08/15/38 (@ 210,788,464
City of Arlington TX Special Tax Revenue, Special Tax Bonds
175,000 3.13% 02/15/22 19,406,269
450,000 3.45% 02/15/24 50,970,233
300,000 3.60% 02/15/25 34,393,824

118/243



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 12 31
(96.5%)
(86.9%)
(86-9%)
usb 220,000 3.67% 02/15/26 \ 25,431,786
310,000 3.77% 02/15/27 36,045,217
City of Atlantic City NJ, General Obligation Bonds
500,000 3.80% 09/01/22 55,900,137
City of Austin TX Electric Utility Revenue, Revenue Bonds
1,175,000 3.04% 11/15/30 132,342,040
City of Bridgeport CT, General Obligation Bonds
1,000,000 3.46% 07/01/22 111,003,796
500,000 3.65% 09/15/39 @ 52,946,215
City of Dearborn MI, General Obligation Bonds
1,000,000 4.33% 05/01/32 @ 119,268,476
City of Holland MI, General Obligation Bonds
900,000 4.14% 08/01/32 @ 104,944,697
City of Houston TX Combined Uti lity System Revenue, Revenue Bonds
300,000 3.83% 05/15/28 35,457,823
City of Jersey City NJ, General Obligation Bonds
350,000 3.76% 09/01/33 38,985,198
City of Kansas City MO, Revenue Bonds
500,000 4.38% 10/01/32 (@ 59,343,029
1,480,000 5.25% 03/01/32 @ 169,947,978
City of Los Angeles Department of Airports, Revenue Bonds
500,000 2.29% 05/15/21 54,638,594
City of Memphis TN, General Obligation Bonds
60,000 5.26% 07/01/25 7,491,477
City of New Orleans LA, General Obligation Bonds
250,000 3.17% 12/01/25 28,404,811
500,000 3.89% 09/01/23 ® 56,881,880
City of New York NY, General Obligation Bonds
900,000 3.60% 08/01/28 (@ 103,112,038
1,000,000 5.85% 06/01/40 147,401,636
City of Oakland CA, Revenue Bonds
90,000 0.00% 12/15/21 (b) 9,352,823
City of Riverside CA, Revenue Bonds
925,000 3.00% 06/01/25 103,592,152
City of Tucson AZ, Certificates of Participation
175,000 6.30% 07/01/25 22,123,964
City of Worcester MA, General Obligation Bonds
1,030,000 3.35% 01/15/29 @ 116,857,702
2,805,000 3.50% 01/15/32 @ 313,846,650
Colorado Educational & Cultural Facilities Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,590,000 3.39% 03/01/29 181,784,507
Colorado Health Facilities Authority Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 3.37% 11/01/34 218,017,597
Commonwealth Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
505,000 3.66% 06/01/38 58,057,598
2,000,000 3.86% 06/01/38 233,143,069
2,700,000 5.20% 06/01/26 325,307,829
Connecticut State Health & Educational Facilities Authority, Revenue Bonds
500,000 3.36% 07/01/28 56,303,266
Contra Costa County Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency, Tax Allocation
600,000 2.75% 08/01/24 65,923,587
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2,500,000

400,000
185,000
955,000

1,200,000

1,000,000

3.00% 08/01/25

County of Alameda CA, General Obligation Bonds
4.00% 08/01/26

County of Cook IL, General Obligation Bonds
6.23% 11/15/34

6.31% 11/15/31

6.36% 11/15/33

County of Fresno CA, Revenue Bonds

0.00% 08/15/25 ()

County of Jackson MI, General Obligation Bonds
3.53% 12/01/28
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County of Mahoning OH, General Obligation Bonds
usD 175,000 3.24% 12/01/30 @ \ 19,620,763
County of Miami-Dade FL Aviation Revenue, Revenue
Bonds
2,100,000 3.14% 10/01/27 235,752,648
2,000,000 3.18% 10/01/28 224,652,377
County of Miami-Dade FL Water & Sewer System
Revenue, Revenue Bonds
1,245,000 2.50% 10/01/27 135,971,637
County of Tulare CA, Revenue Bonds
1,610,000 4.31% 06/01/33 192,711,520
Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport, Revenue
Bonds
2,000,000 2.99% 11/01/38 214,492,667
Florida Municipal Power Agency, Revenue Bonds
1,250,000 3.06% 10/01/25 140,255,612
Foothill-Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency,
Revenue Bonds
1,750,000 3.92% 01/15/53 (@ 187,595,514
Idaho Energy Resources Authority, Revenue Bonds
500,000 2.45% 09/01/24 55,222,642
Il1inois Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
250,000 3.35% 08/01/20 27,272,845
325,000 3.60% 08/01/21 35,665,173
300,000 3.88% 08/01/22 33,307,984
Indiana Bond Bank, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.11% 08/01/28 (@ 111,665,536
JobsOhio Beverage System, Revenue Bonds
2,950,000 3.99% 01/01/29 348,075,576
Kansas Development Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
100,000 3.64% 04/15/24 11,495,359
40,000 4.39% 04/15/30 4,957,547
165,000 4.73% 04/15/37 21,490,117
Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 5.08% 08/15/48 128,272,043
Kentucky Higher Education Student Loan Corp., Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.69% 06/01/23 113,702,911
1,500,000 3.76% 06/01/24 172,412,452
Kentucky Housing Corp., Revenue Bonds
485,000 3.21% 01/01/25 55,157,506
340,000 3.31% 07/01/25 38,919,078
Kentucky State Property & Building Commission, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 2.26% 05/01/20 108,797,998
2,000,000 6.16% 08/01/23 235,414,063
250,000 6.57% 08/01/29 33,818,252
La Quinta Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency, Tax Allocation
1,230,000 3.77% 09/01/28 @ 143,757,213
605,000 4.53% 09/01/39 @ 71,348,177
Louisiana Local Government Environmental Facilities &
Community Development Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.39% 09/01/34 @ 106,851,898
Massachusetts Development Finance Agency, Revenue
Bonds
1,000,000 4.00% 06/01/24 110,938,600
2,000,000 4.50% 07/01/33 ® 240,279,858
Massachusetts Educational Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
500,000 3.51% 07/01/29 57,863,623
350,000 3.70% 07/01/23 39,653,783
1,500,000 4_04% 07/01/26 175,998,232
Metropolitan St Louis Sewer District, Revenue Bonds
750,000 3.16% 05/01/38 @ 81,574,050
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Metropolitan Transportation Authority, Revenue Bonds
UsD 2,590,000 6.73% 11/15/30 \ 360,654,590

Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority Dulles
Toll Road Revenue, Revenue Bonds
500,000 8.00% 10/01/47 88,846,392
Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater
Chicago, General Obligation Bonds

410,000 5.72% 12/01/38 58,286,441
Michigan Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
4,000,000 2.67% 09/01/49 @, (©) 435,165,914
2,500,000 3.38% 12/01/40 271,041,504
Minneapolis-St Paul Metropolitan Airports Commission, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 3.90% 01/01/30 @ 231,050,278
Moreno Valley Public Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
400,000 3.25% 05/01/26 (@ 43,786,068
1,000,000 4.00% 05/01/32 @ 110,033,462
Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia, Revenue Bonds
545,000 3.78% 01/01/20 59,219,700
Muskegon County Building Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.86% 11/01/32 @ 115,702,255
Nebraska Public Power District, Revenue Bonds
3,325,000 2.42% 01/01/26 359,419,382
1,510,000 2.49% 01701727 163,351,381
250,000 3.05% 01/01/28 28,012,005
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
40,000 2.82% 07/01/23 4,434,632
315,000 2.93% 07/01/22 34,938,471
310,000 2.93% 01/01/23 34,442,840
140,000 2.97% 07/01/24 15,627,699
225,000 3.24% 01/01/24 25,346,249
New Jersey Economic Development Authority, Revenue Bonds
675,000 0.00% 02/15/24 ® 65,471,861
1,425,000 0.00% 02/15/25 (® 134,627,621
750,000 3.47% 06/15/27 81,040,258
2,500,000 4.52% 06/15/21 280,451,460
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority, Revenue Bonds
3,500,000 3.84% 09/01/36 (@ 388,364,966
New Jersey Higher Education Student Assistance Authority, Revenue Bonds
640,000 3.25% 12/01/30 (@ 72,545,241
New Jersey Institute of Technology, Revenue Bonds
500,000 4.18% 07/01/37 @ 57,519,171

New Jersey Transportation Trust Fund Authority,
Revenue Bonds

2,000,000 4.08% 06/15/39 216,415,949
New Jersey Turnpike Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.73% 01/01/36 114,936,202
1,000,000 7.41% 01/01/40 170,450,596
New Orleans Aviation Board, Revenue Bonds
525,000 2.95% 01/01/23 58,057,934
New York City Housing Development Corp., Revenue Bonds
400,000 3.23% 02/01/27 @ 44,732,714
400,000 3.28% 08/01/27 (@ 44,790,087
300,000 3.33% 02/01/28 (@ 33,627,119
700,000 3.38% 08/01/28 (@ 78,603,231
New York City Transitional Finance Authority Future Tax Secured Revenue, Revenue Bonds
200,000 2.90% 11701721 22,109,268
1,050,000 3.04% 08/01/27 117,831,828
New York State Dormitory Authority, Revenue Bonds
300,000 3.27% 07/01/26 33,658,087
New York State Environmental Facilities Corp., Revenue Bonds
750,000 2.72% 01/15/25 84,068,612
1,990,000 3.26% 01/15/30 @ 226,216,896
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New York State Urban Development Corp., Revenue Bonds
usb 2,000,000 3.37% 03/15/30 (@ \ 226,832,096
North Carolina Turnpike Authority, Revenue Bonds
75,000 5.32% 01/01/31 9,860,080
North Hudson Sewerage Authority, Revenue Bonds
515,000 3.26% 06/01/32 () 56,553,075
Oregon School Boards Association, General Obligation Bonds
200,000 5.68% 06/30/28 26,057,320
Palmdale Elementary School District, Special Tax Bonds
650,000 3.25% 08/01/27 72,341,047
1,080,000 3.50% 08/01/28 121,721,845
Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.20% 11/15/27 111,384,106
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, Revenue Bonds
250,000 2.93% 12/01/25 27,696,891
Philadelphia Authority for Industrial Development, Revenue Bonds
320,000 6.35% 04/15/28 42,839,857
Port Authority of New York & New Jersey, Revenue Bonds
1,500,000 4.43% 10/15/34 (@ 177,008,770
Port of Seattle WA, Revenue Bonds
750,000 2.84% 05/01/24 83,494,887
Public Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
35,000 3.50% 07/01/21 3,806,713
Regents of the University of California Medical Center Pooled Revenue, Revenue Bonds
690,000 6.46% 05/15/29 90,894,177
Regional Transportation District, Certificate of Participation
375,000 7.67% 06/01/40 61,269,571
Rhode Island Convention Center Authority, Revenue Bonds
835,000 2.64% 05/15/20 90,927,079
1,000,000 2.81% 05/15/21 109,687,924
Rhode Island Turnpike & Bridge Authority, Revenue Bonds
635,000 3.16% 12/01/33 @ 67,727,447
1,000,000 3.46% 12/01/39 @ 108,442,680
Sales Tax Securitization Corp., Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 2.98% 01/01/25 110,302,939
2,000,000 3.59% 01701743 214,257,961
San Diego Community College District, General Obligation Bonds
1,000,000 2.88% 08/01/33 (@ 108,253,612
San Diego County Regional Transportation Commission, Revenue Bonds
1,120,000 3.20% 04/01/39 @ 122,536,490
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San Francisco City & County Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency, Tax Allocation

500,000 3.11% 08701722 55,789,304
Snohomish County Public Utility District No 1, Revenue Bonds
1,650,000 5.63% 12/01/35 232,514,525
South Carolina Public Service Authority, Revenue Bonds
295,000 2.3% 12/01/23 32,125,541
1,000,000 6.45% 01/01/50 164,041,829
South Central Connecticut Regional Water Authority, Revenue Bonds
2,800,000 3.04% 08/01/33 ® 308,486,175
Stanton Redevelopment Agency, Tax Allocation
800,000 3.13% 12/01/24 90,077,401
State of California, General Obligation Bonds
2,250,000 7.50% 04/01/34 368,155,292
1,500,000 7.55% 04/01/39 261,439,220

State of Connecticut, General Obligation Bonds

3,000,000 2.99% 01/15/23 335,293,249
State of Hawaii Airports System Revenue, Revenue Bonds
525,000 3.23% 07/01/27 59,826,946
State of Illinois, General Obligation Bonds
3,010,000 5.10% 06/01/33 352,587,607
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State of Mississippi, General Obligation Bonds
usD 375,000 3.14% 12/01/25 \ 43,134,081
State of Wisconsin, Revenue Bonds
3,955,000 3.95% 05/01/36 (@ 459,446,046
Terrebonne Parish Consolidated Government, Revenue Bonds
250,000 2.91% 04/01/20 27,242,964
Texas A&M University, Revenue Bonds
500,000 2.26% 05/15/25 54,457,132
1,250,000 3.99% 05/15/37 @ 145,177,910,
Texas Private Activity Bond Surface Transportation Corp.,
Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.92% 12/31/49 109,229,378
Tulsa Airports Improvement Trust, Revenue Bonds
325,000 3.11% 06/01/24 36,465,753
500,000 3.45% 06/01/26 57,320,867
University of Nebraska Facilities Corp., Revenue Bonds
200,000 2.37% 10/01/29 21,403,412
University of North Texas System, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.36% 04/15/27 115,359,976
University of Pittsburgh-of the Commonwealth System of Higher Education, Revenue Bonds
2,000,000 3.13% 09/15/26 227,390,609
390,000 3.43% 09/15/30 44,961,574
University of Virginia, Revenue Bonds
400,000 6.20% 09/01/39 63,604,348
Utah Housing Corp., Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.38% 01/01/39 @ 108,345,973
Vermont Student Assistance Corp., Revenue Bonds
60,000 3.50% 06/15/29 (@ 6,777,972
1,700,000 5.00% 06/15/26 218,642,501
Village of Oak Lawn IL, General Obligation Bonds
1,075,000 2.87% 12/01/22 117,531,383
Washington Convention & Sports Authority, Revenue Bonds
1,000,000 3.77% 10/01/27 117,213,715
West Contra Costa Unified School District, General Obligation Bonds
1,000,000 3.47% 08/01/33 @ 112,250,126
100,000 3.54% 08/01/34 (@ 11,230,663
Yuba Levee Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds
640,000 2.86% 09/01/21 70,780,950
C \19,769,367) 20,175,535,444
(¢ \19,769,105,367) \ 20,175,535,444
(¢ \21,967,576,482) \ 22,416,261,730
(2-9%)
(0.2%)
(0.2%)
usD 425,000 Indiana Finance Authority, Revenue Bonds
2.52% 09/15/20 46,180,500
C \45,003,250) 46,180,500
2.T™)
2.m)
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp.
usb 5,720,336 1.56% 01/02/20 621,571,703
( \621,571,703) 621,571,703
C \621,571,703) 621,571,703
C \666,574,953) 667,752,203
(  \22,634,151,435) 99.4 \  23,084,013,933
0.6 137,076,412
100.0% \ 23,221,090,345
@
(O]
©
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Q)]

0.1% \ 22,123,964

14.6% 3,383,413,952

2.0% 461,071,675

3.7% 864,032,701

0.9% 206,060,107

3.2% 736,632,274

0.3% 59,219,700

0.3% 59,826,946

0.2% 55,222,642

5. 0% 1,170,195,534

0.7% 157,846,036

0.2% 37,943,023

3.8% 886,494,303

1.2% 277,439,487

4.5% 1,055,438, 448

5.20% 1,216,349,602

1.0% 231,050,278

0.2% 43,134,081

1.3% 310,865,057

2.5% 572,186,180

0.5% 114,789,891

7.5% 1,733,261,735

7.3% 1,700,646,972

0.0% 9,860,080

1.9% 430,634,298

0.4% 93,786,620

0.1% 26,057,320

4.6% 1,070,781,533

1.6% 376,785,130

0.8% 196,167,370

0.0% 7,491,477

6. 2% 1,434,682,485

0.5% 108,345,973

1.0% 225,420,473

0.3% 63,604,348

1.5% 359,601,490

2.0% 463,252,759

87.1% \ 20,221,715,944

2019 12 31 ( -0.2%)
/

JPY CITI 33,527,280  01/22/2020  USD _ (315,246)  \ -\ (690,211) \ (690,211)
usD 6S 208,613  01/22/2020  JPY (22,504,413) 138,890 138,890
usD 6S 436,812 01/22/2020  JPY (47,062,993) 349,614 349,614
JpY 6S 21,158,856  01/22/2020  USD  (195,779) - (91,484) (91,484)
JPY 6S 17,594,904  01/22/2020  USD  (161,050) 114,204 114,204
JPY 6S 28,910,416  01/22/2020  USD  (267,010) - (71,446) (71,446)
JpY 6S 22,882,000  01/22/2020  USD (212,457) - (178,521) (178,521)
usD 6S 198,851  01/22/2020  JPY (21,661,210) - (77,449) (77,449)
usD RBC 194,013 01/22/2020  JPY (21,069,203) - (10,637) (10,637)
JPY SSB 3,742,026,866  01/22/2020  USD (34,819,593) - (37,371,076) (37,371,076)
JPY SSB 14,394,000  01/22/2020  USD (133,936) - (143,751) (143,751)
JpY SSB 20,845,492  01/22/2020  USD (191,407) 69,771 - 69,771
usD WSTP 1,216,544  01/22/2020  JPY (133,000,000) - (953,555) (953,555)
JPY WSTP 15,900,000  01/22/2020  USD (145,729) 82,295 - 82,295
JPY WSTP 3,700,000  01/22/2020  USD (34,180) - (9,955) (9,955)
usD WSTP 35,021  01/22/2020  JPY  (3,800,000) 1,225 - 1,225
usD WSTP 16,612 01/22/2020  JPY  (1,800,000) 3,149 - 3,149
usD WSTP 214,002 01/22/2020  JPY (23,322,624) - (94,380) (94,380)
usD WSTP 87,566  01/22/2020  JPY  (9,500,000) 4,577 - 4,577
UsD WSTP 316,868  01/22/2020  JPY (34,376,314) 17,294 - 17,294
usD WSTP 39,409  01/22/2020  JPY  (4,300,000) - (22,488) (22,488)
usD WSTP 268,870  01/22/2020  JPY (29,000,000) 183,712 - 183,712
usD WSTP 259,317  01/22/2020  JPY (28,090,711) 56,136 - 56,136
usD WSTP 38,727  01/22/2020  JPY  (4,100,000) 103,565 - 103,565
UsD WSTP 166,629  01/22/2020  JPY (18,200,000) - (113,728) (113,728)
usD WSTP 469,495  01/22/2020  JPY (51,000,000) - (39,964) (39,964)
UsD WSTP 7,526 01/22/2020  JPY (800,000) 16,852 - 16,852

\ 1,141,284 \ (39,868,645) \  (38,727,361)
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*
Gs \ 602,708 (418,900) \ - \ - \ 183,808
SSB 69,771 (69,771) - - -
WSTP 468,805 (468,805) - - -
\ 1,141,284 (957,476) \ - \ - \ 183,808
*
CITI 690,211 - \ - \ — N\ 690,211
Gs 418,900 (418,900) - - -
RBC 10,637 - - - 10,637
SSB 37,514,827 (69,771) - - 37,445,056
WSTP 1,234,070 (468,805) - - 765,265
39,868,645 (957,476) \ - \ -\ 38,911,169
* /( )
CITI
GS
JPY
RBC
SSB
USD
wsTP
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US Municipal Bond Fund
Statement of Financial Position
November 30, 2019

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Assets November 30, 2019 November 30, 2018
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.2, 5) $ 175,127,882 $ 109,707,085
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2.1) 5,474,108 2,859,727
Prepaid fees - 21,950
Receivables for:

Units issued (Note 2.10, 3) 2,836,050 182,728
Total assets 183,438,040 112,771,490

Liabilities

Payables for:

Purchase of Investment in the Selected Fund (Note 2.4) 1,000,000 -
Fee agent fees (Note 8.2C) 303,034 337,384
Professional fees (Note 8.1E) 74,110 69,908
Investment management fees (Note 8.2B) 57,164 97,386
Distribution fees (Note 8.1C) 36,256 22,504
Administrator fees (Note 8.1A) 31,638 9,668
Custody fees (Note 8.1B) 14,549 5,919
Transfer agent fees (Note 8.1D) 6,215 1,185
Agent member company fees (Note 8.2E) 2,858 4,890
Registration fees 1,162 -
Printing fees 421 -
Units repurchased (Note 2.8, 2.10, 3) - 211,303
Other liabilities - 1,853
Liabilities (excluding equity) 1,527,407 762,000
Equity (being net assets attributable to the holder of units) $ 181,910,633 $ 112,009,490

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Income

Net income/(loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL(M
Dividend income (Note 2.11)
Interest income (Note 2.11)

Net realized loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (Note 2.11, 7)

Net change in unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) on financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profitor loss (Note 2.2,
2.11,7)

Net realized gain on foreign currency transactions (Note 2.6)

Total income/(loss)

Expenses
Fee agent fees (Note 8.2C)
Distribution fees (Note 8.1C)
Investment management fees (Note 8.2B)
Agent member company fees (Note 8.2E)
Administrator fees (Note 8.1A)
Professional fees (Note 8.1E)
Custody fees (Note 8.1B)
Transfer agent fees (Note 8.1D)
Organization expenses
Printing fees
Registration fees
Other expenses

Total expenses
Operating profit/(loss) before finance costs

Total comprehensive income/(loss) (being increase/(decrease) in net
assets attributable to the holder of units from operations)

November 30, 2019

November 30, 2018

$ 4,744,380 $ 4,197,121
58,235 24,580
(59,188) (467,241)
9,335,436 (4,345,689)
168 539
14,079,031 (590, 690)
953,634 804,311
346,028 291,417
276,822 233,134
113,870 11,657
84,879 69,941
58,700 72,658
39,633 39,773
25,040 24,480
24,484 149,037
7,936 11,162
1,162 1,622

25 -
1,932,213 1,709,192
12,146,818 (2,299,882)
$ 12,146,818  $ (2,299,882)

@ This relates to net income from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss

(* FVTPL” ) including realized and unrealized gains/losses on financial assets and liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss, dividend income and interest income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended November 30, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

At November 30, 2017 $ 88,543,809
Issue of units (Note 3) 50,060,299
Repurchases of units (Note 2.8, 3) (22,888,613)
Distributions (Note 2.7) (1,406,123)
Total comprehensive loss (being decrease in net assets attributable

to the holder of units from operations) (2,299,882)
At November 30, 2018 $ 112,009,490
Issue of units (Note 3) 70,099,404
Repurchases of units (Note 2.8, 3) (10,755,611)
Distributions (Note 2.7) (1,589,468)
Total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets

attributable to the holder of units from operations) 12,146,818
At November 30, 2019 $ 181,910,633

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended November 30, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities: November 30, 2019  November 30, 2018

Total comprehensive income/(loss) (being increase/(decrease) in net
assets attributable to the holder of units from operations) $ 12,146,818 $ (2,299,882)

Adjustments to reconci le total comprehensive income/(loss) (being
increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to the holder of units from
operations) to cash used in operating activities:

Purchases of investment in the Selected Fund (58,844,379) (43,697,122)

Proceeds from disposition of investment in the Selected Fund 2,699,998 14,300,000

Net (payments) from settlement of forward contracts (168) (539)

Net realized loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value

through profitor loss 59,188 467,241

Net change in unrealized (appreciation)/depreciation on financial

assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (9,335,436) 4,345,689

Decrease in prepaid fees 21,950 88,449

Increase/(decrease) in payables for purchase of investment in the

Selected Fund 1,000,000 (3,900,000)

(Decrease)/increase in other payables® (23,290) 389,412
Net cash (used in) operating activities (52,275,319) (30,306,752)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from units issued, net of change in receivables for units issued

67,446,082 56,016,126

Repurchases of units, net of change in payables for units repurchased (10,966,914) (22,707,775)

Distributions paid to the holder of units, net of change in payables for

distributions to the holder of units (1,589,468) (1,406,123)
Net cash provided by financing activities 54,889,700 31,902,228
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,614,381 1,595,476
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (Note 2.1) 2,859,727 1,264,251
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 2.1) $ 5,474,108 $ 2,859,727
Supplementary information on cash flows from operating activities
Interest received $ 58,235 $ 24,580
Dividends received $ 4,744,380 $ 4,197,121

@ Other payables comprise of administrator fees, investment management fees, professional fees, fee agent fees,
distribution fees, custody fees, agent member company fees, transfer agent fees, registration fees, printing fees and
other liabilities as disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended November 30, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

1. ORGANIZATION

US Municipal Bond Fund (the" Series Trust” ) is a Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111 (the
“ Trust” ), an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed dated December 2, 2013 under
Cayman Islands law. The Series Trust was established pursuant to a Supplemental Trust Deed dated October 3, 2016
and executed by Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the" Trustee” ), a trust company incorporated under the laws of
the Cayman Islands. The manager of the Series Trust is Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the

“ Manager” ). The Series Trust commenced operations on November 16, 2016.

The Trust is an exempted unit trust under the Trusts Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and registered under the
Mutual Funds Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands on January 22, 2014.

The principal office for the Trustee (and therefore the Series Trust) is 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand
Cayman KY1-9007, Cayman Islands.

The Administrator, Custodian and Transfer Agent of the Series Trust is Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (the
“ Administrator” ,“ Custodian” and“ Transfer Agent” ).

Credit Suisse International acts as the Fee Agent (the" Fee Agent” ).

Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Member Company (the" Agent Member Company” ).

The Investment Manager of the Series Trust is Sumitomo Mitsui DS Asset Management Company Limited (formerly
Sumitomo Mitsui Asset Management Company Limited) (the* Investment Manager® ).

The Manager has authorized Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation to act as the Distributor (the* Distributor” ) of
the units in Japan.

One class of units in the Series Trust is currently available for issue: Class A Units (the" Class A Units” ).
The Series Trust and the Class A Units are denominated in U. S. Dollars (* USD” or* $" ).

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to seek current income and capital appreciation by investing
indirectly in United States municipal securities (the "Municipal Bonds™). The Series Trust seeks to achieve its
investment objective by investing substantially all of the assets of the Series Trust into the USD class of units
of Municipal Core Fund (the "Selected Fund™).
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The Selected Fund is a series trust of Income Investment Trust, a Cayman Islands umbrella unit trust (the "SF
Trust™). The Selected Fund is registered as a Mutual Fund under the Mutual Funds Law (as amended) of the Cayman
Islands and the SF Trust has obtained a tax exemption certificate from the Cayman Islands Government. Neither the
units of the SF Trust, nor the Selected Fund have been or will be registered under United States Securities Act
1933 and the Selected Fund has not been and will not be registered under the United States Company Act of 1940.
The investment objective of the Selected Fund is to seek current income and capital appreciation by investing
principally in United States municipal securities.

In order to pursue its investment objective, Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC (the* Investment Manager of
the Selected Fund” ) utilizes a multi-disciplinary combination of deep fundamental bottom-up analysis and macro
investment principles to invest in bonds rated Baa3/BBB - or higher and issued by municipalities domiciled in the
United States. The Selected Fund intends to hold high-rated securities (the highest rating has to be Baa3/BBB- or
higher with reference to Moody*"s, Standard & Poor®s and Fitch). In its discretion, the Investment Manager of the
Selected Fund sells securities whose credit rating fall to Bal/BB+ or below, depending on market condition.

The Investment Manager of the Series Trust shall have day-to-day investment decision-making and ongoing
monitoring responsibility over the portion of the Series Trust®s portfolio comprising the Selected Fund and USD
cash, money market securities and forward contracts (the "Subadvised Portfolio™). The Subadvised Portfolio may
generate a certain amount of income each month. Such income is distributed to the unitholder on each distribution
date.

At November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018, the Series Trust held 84.0% and 77.2%, respectively, of the Selected
Fund®s net assets.

Currently the Selected Fund has three Classes - Class A JPY Hedged Class, Class B JPY Unhedged Class and Class C
USD Unhedged Class; of units being offered to investors which have been established for certain Japanese
Investment Trusts. All Classes are subscribed to in Japanese Yen of US Dollars. Class A seeks to be hedged back
to Japanese Yen, Class B and Class C are not hedged against USD denominated assets. The Series Trust invests into
the Selected Fund by purchasing the Selected Fund®s redeemable participating shares in the Class C USD Unhedged
Class. The Selected Fund allows repurchases of these shares on any business day.

Movements in the fair value of the Selected Fund"s portfolio and corresponding movements in the fair value of the

Selected Fund may expose the Series Trust to a loss.

Final Repurchase Day

The Series Trust will continue until the earlier of December 1, 2163 and the earliest practicable repurchase day
following the occurrence of a compulsory repurchase event (the* Final Repurchase Day” ), unless terminated
earlier in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The units are compulsorily repurchased upon the first to occur of any of the following:

(i) the net asset value (“Net Asset Value" being the value of its total assets minus its liabilities including
accrued fees and expenses) on any valuation day is $3,000,000 or less and on that valuation day or
thereafter the Manager determines that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased by giving notice
to all unitholders; or

(i1) the Trustee and the Manager agreeing that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased, (each a
"Compulsory Repurchase Event™).

Upon the occurrence of a Compulsory Repurchase Event, each unit is repurchased on the Final Repurchase Day at the
final repurchase price per unit. The final repurchase price per unit is calculated by the Administrator in its
sole discretion in accordance with the Offering Memorandum and the Appendix 25 as the Net Asset Value per unit on
the Final Repurchase Day (or if such day is not also a valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day).
Repurchase Day is each dealing day which is also a day on which no Series Trust disruption event occurs and/or
such other day or days as the Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust. Unitholder
is able to receive an amount in respect of each unit repurchased on any Repurchase Day prior to the Final
Repurchase Day equal to the Net Asset Value per unit as at the relevant Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchase Day
is not also a valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day) (the* Repurchase Price” ). There is no
repurchase fee applied to the Repurchase Price in respect of each unit being repurchased.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Trustee on May 12, 2020.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. The
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates and requires the Trustee and the Manager to exercise their judgment in the process of applying the
Series Trust"s accounting policies. Areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27) (2012) (the
Amendments) . Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of an investment entity.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued effective for the financial year ending November 30, 2019:

(a) Change in significant accounting policies

The Series Trust has initially applied IFRS 9 from December 1, 2018. As permitted by the transition provisions of
IFRS 9, comparative information throughout these financial statements has not generally been restated to reflect
the requirements of the standard. Therefore, financial instruments in the comparative period are still accounted

for in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

(i) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard replaces 1AS 39 Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement.

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 9, the Series Trust is required to adopt consequential amendments to

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, which require:

- Impairment of financial assets to be presented in a separate line item in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. Under IAS 39, impairment was recognized when losses were incurred. The Series Trust did not
previously report any incurred losses; and,

- Separate presentation in the Statement of Comprehensive Income of interest income calculated using the
effective interest method.

The adoption of IFRS 9 had no material impact on the net assets attributable to the holder of units of the
Series Trust.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortized cost, fair
value through profit and loss (FVTPL) and fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The
classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model in which a financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

IFRS 9 eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for

sale.

The adoption of IFRS 9 has not had a significant effect on the Series Trust"s accounting policies related to
financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities under IAS 39 are not materially different to the

carrying amounts under IFRS 9.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The following table and the accompanying notes below explain the original measurement categories under IAS 39 and
the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for the Trust"s financial assets and financial liabilities as at
December 1, 2018:

Original
Original New carrying New carrying
classification classification amount under amount
Assets under 1AS 39 under IFRS 9 1AS 39 under IFRS 9
Investment in the Selected Fund Designated as at FVTPL Mandatorily at FVTPL $ 109,707,085 $ 109,707,085
Cash and cash equivalents Loans and receivables Amortized cost 2,859,727 2,859,727
Prepaid fees Loans and receivables Amortized cost 21,950 21,950
Receivables for:
Units issued Loans and receivables Amortized cost 182,728 182,728
Total Assets $ 112,771,490 $ 112,771,490
Original
Original New carrying New carrying
classification classification amount under amount
Liabilities under 1AS 39 under IFRS 9 1AS 39 under IFRS 9
Payables for:
Fee agent fees Amortized cost Amortized cost $ 337,384 $ 337,384
Units repurchased Amortized cost Amortized cost 211,303 211,303
Investment management fees Amortized cost Amortized cost 97,386 97,386
Professional fees Amortized cost Amortized cost 69,908 69,908
Distribution fees Amortized cost Amortized cost 22,504 22,504
Administrator fees Amortized cost Amortized cost 9,668 9,668
Custody fees Amortized cost Amortized cost 5,919 5,919
Agent member company fees Amortized cost Amortized cost 4,890 4,890
Transfer agent fees Amortized cost Amortized cost 1,185 1,185
Other liabilities Amortized cost Amortized cost 1,853 1,853
Total Liabilities $ 762,000 $ 762,000

The following table reconciles the carrying amounts of financial assets under IAS 39 to the carrying amounts
under IFRS 9 on transition to IFRS 9 on December 1, 2018:

I1AS 39 carrying IFRS 9 carrying
amount at amount at
Assets November 30, 2018  Reclassification  Remeasurement December 1, 2018
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,859,727 $ -3 - $ 2,859,727
Prepaid fees 21,950 - - 21,950
Receivables for:
Units issued 182,728 - - 182,728
Total amortized cost $ 3,064,405 $ -3 -3 3,064,405
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Classification of financial assets - Policy applicable from December 1, 2018

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A
financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

i) It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;

and,

ii) Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely represent payments of

principal and interest (SPPI).
A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if any of the following apply:

i) Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of

principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding;

ii) It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows, or to

both collect contractual cash flows and sell;

iii) At initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FVTPL when doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring

assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment,

the Series Trust considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

leverage features;

prepayment and extension features;

terms that limit the Series Trust®s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features);

and

features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:

- Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents and receivables for units issued.

These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flow.

- Other business model: this includes financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Investment in the
Selected Fund). These financial assets which are managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value

basis, with frequent sales taking place.

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held, the Series
Trust considers all of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:

the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes whether the
investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate
profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected

cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust®"s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets
managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust"s continuing recognition of the assets.

Classification of financial liabilities - Policy applicable from December 1, 2018

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost include payables for purchase of Investment in the Selected Fund,
fee agent fees, units repurchased, investment management fees, professional fees, distribution fees,
administrator fees, custody fees, agent member company fees, transfer agent fees and other liabilities.
Impairment of financial assets

The effect of adopting IFRS 9 on the carrying amounts of financial assets at December 1, 2018 relates solely on
the new impairment requirements.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

IFRS 9 replaces the" incurred loss” model in IAS 39 with an“ expected credit loss” (ECL) model. The new
impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost and debt investment at FVOCI, but not to
investments in equity instruments. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognized earlier than under IAS 39.

Based on the Series Trust's assessment, changes to the impairment model do not have a material impact on the
Series Trust"s financial assets because:

The majority of the financial assets are measured at FVTPL and the impairment requirements do not apply to
such instruments.

The financial assets at amortized cost are short-term (i.e. no longer than 12 months), of high credit
quality and/or highly collateralized. Accordingly, the ECLs on such assets are expected to be small.

Transition
Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 have been applied retrospectively, except as
described below.

- Comparative periods have not generally been restated. Differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets
resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 are recognized in net assets attributable to the holder of units as at
December 1, 2018. Accordingly, the information presented for 2018 does not reflect the requirements of IFRS
9, but rather those of IAS 39.

- The following assessment has been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that existed at the date
of initial application.

The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held.
The revocation of previous designations of certain financial assets as measured at FVTPL.

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the financial year ending November 30,
2019:

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after December
1, 2018 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not early applied these new or
amended standards in preparing these financial statements as they do not have a material effect on the Series
Trust®s financial statements.

2.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Series Trust considers all cash, foreign cash and short-term deposits with original maturity of three months
or less to be cash and cash equivalents.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

At November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018, the Series Trust held the following balances as cash and cash

equivalents:

2019 2018
Cash $ 3,913 $ 3,105
Time deposit 5,470,195 2,856,622
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position $ 5,474,108 $ 2,859,727

2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

(A) Classification
The Series Trust classifies financial assets and liabilities into the following categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Mandatorily at FVTPL: Investment in the Selected Fund.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of the following:

November 30, November 30,
2019 - Fair Value 2019 - Cost
Investment in the Selected Fund $ 175,127,882 $ 169,779,548
November 30, November 30,
2018 - Fair Value 2018 - Cost
Investment in the Selected Fund $ 109,707,085 $ 113,694,187

Financial assets at amortized cost:

Loans and receivables: cash and cash equivalents, prepaid fees and receivables for units issued.

At November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018 the Series Trust held no financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Other liabilities: payables for purchase of Investment in the Selected Fund, administrator fees, units
repurchased, investment management fees, professional fees, fee agent fees, distribution fees, custody fees,
agent member company fees, transfer agent fees, registration fees, printing fees and other liabilities.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

(B) Recognition/Derecognition

The Series Trust recognizes financial assets and liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date - the
date on which the Series Trust commits to purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets are derecognized when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Series Trust has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial liabilities are derecognized when its contractual
obligations are discharged, canceled or expired.

(C) Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value with
transaction costs recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, if any. Subsequent to initial recognition,
all financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the "financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss® category are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which
they arise. Realized gains or losses on sale of investments are calculated using first-in-first-out method.

Financial assets and liabilities other than those at fair value through profit or loss are carried at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses, if any. This is considered to approximate
fair value due to the short-term or immediate nature of these instruments.

(D) Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and trading
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.
Investments or other assets for which market quotations are not readily available are valued at their fair value
as determined in good faith in accordance with procedures adopted by the Trustee with advice from the Manager.
The resulting change in net unrealized gains or losses are reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(E) Forward Contracts

Forward contracts are commitments either to purchase or sell a designated financial instrument, currency,
commodity or an index at a specified future date for a specified price and may be settled in cash or another
financial asset. Forward contracts are valued using observable inputs, such as currency exchange rates or
commodity prices, applied to notional amounts stated in the applicable contracts. Gains and losses are reported
in net realized gain or loss on financial assets through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

(F) Investment in Selected Fund

In principle, the Investment Manager will invest a majority of the Net Asset Value in the Selected Fund. The USD
class of the Selected Fund is denominated in USD and will not be hedged into other currencies. The Investment
Manager will not invest in non-USD denominated assets. The Series Trust®s investment in the Selected Fund is
subject to the terms and conditions of the Selected Fund®s offering documentation. The Series Trust records its
investments in the Selected Fund at fair value based primarily on the Selected Fund"s Net Asset Value, as
determined by the administrator of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust reviews the details of the reported
information obtained from the Selected Fund®s administrator and considers: (i) the liquidity of the Selected
Fund, or its underlying investments, (ii) the value date of the Net Asset Value provided, (iii) any restrictions
on redemptions, and (iv) the basis of accounting. Since the Series Trust invests substantially all of its assets
in the Selected Fund, net capital appreciation or depreciation, respectively, of the Series Trust is generally
based on net capital appreciation or depreciation, respectively, of the Selected Fund. The value of the Series
Trust's investment in the Selected Fund is based on available information and does not necessarily represent the
amount that might ultimately be realized, as such amount depends on future circumstances and cannot reasonably be
denominated unlit the Selected Fund"s underlying investment are actually liquidated. Further, the Series Trust's
investment in the Selected Fund in indirectly subjected to restrictions, if any, of the liquidity of the Selected
Fund®s investments.

The Series Trust"s investment in the Selected Fund is considered to be liquid and can be redeemed on any business
day. The Series Trust may submit to the Trustee of the Selected Fund or its duly designated agent a Repurchase
Notice requesting to have all or a portion its units repurchased on the relevant repurchase date. The Trustee of
the Selected Fund should receive the repurchase notice by electronic transmission on or prior to 7:00 a.m.
Eastern Time in the United States of America on the applicable repurchase date. If such notice is not respect of
the entire holding units of the Series Trust, then the Trustee of the Selected Fund in its sole discretion may

apply a minimum repurchase requirement of more than one unit or JPY 10,000 (or its equivalent in any currency).

2.3 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position
only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. As at November 30, 2019 and
November 30, 2018, none of the financial assets and liabilities met the criteria for financial instrument
offsetting, and were therefore not offset in the Statement of Financial Position.
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2.4 Payables for Purchase of Investment in the Selected Fund

Receivables for securities sold and payables for securities purchased represent trading transactions that have
been contracted for but not yet settled on the Statement of Financial Position date, respectively. These amounts
are recognized initially and subsequently measured at fair value, less provision for impairment for amounts of
receivables for securities sold. A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that
the Series Trust will not be able to collect all amounts of receivables for securities sold. Significant
financial difficulties of the broker, probability that the broker will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganization, and default in payments are considered indicators that the amount of receivables for securities
sold is impaired.

2.5 Expenses
Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation

(A) Functional and Presentation Currency

The performance of the Series Trust is measured and reported to the investors in U.S. Dollars. The Trustee
considers the U.S. Dollar as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying
transactions, events and conditions of the Series Trust. The financial statements are presented in U.S. Dollars,
which is the Series Trust"s functional and presentation currency.

(B) Transactions and Balances

Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated in U.S. Dollar amounts at the
date of valuation. Purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities, issue and repurchase of units and
income and expense items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. Dollar amounts on the
respective dates of such transactions.

Reported net realized or unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in foreign exchange

rates on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are included in net realized gain
or loss on financial assets and liabilities through profit or loss, and net change in unrealized appreciation or
depreciation on financial assets and liabilities through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Realized and unrealized appreciation or depreciation from foreign currency transactions and translation are
disclosed separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.7 Distributions

The Series Trust may generate a certain amount of income each month. The current policy of the Series Trust is to
pay to unitholder a monthly distribution in respect of each distribution date of an amount similar to the
generated income attributable to the corresponding distribution period.
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The monthly distribution is expected to be computed from the following separate elements:

(i) an amount equal to the distributions received from the Selected Fund (net of all applicable taxes); and

(i1) interest accrued on the distributions received from (a) above, from the time received by the Custodian
until paid out on the corresponding distribution date (the items referred to in paragraphs (a) - (b)
hereafter referred to as the "Generated Income™).

The amount of distribution paid in respect of each distribution date is determined by the Manager in its sole
discretion taking into account Generated Income, realized and unrealized capital gains from the Selected Fund,
and miscellaneous costs, among other factors, per unit each month. The Manager may, in circumstances where it
deems appropriate, elect that a monthly distribution is not payable in respect of units for a relevant month.
Circumstances where the Manager may make such an election, include but are not limited to where it determines in
its sole discretion that application of the Series Trust"s investment objectives and policies have generated a
negative performance over the previous month or have underperformed to the extent that the Manager deems it
appropriate to make such an election.

Distributions declared and paid during the years ended November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018 were as follows:

2019 2018
Total Amount Total Amount
Class AUnits $ 1,589,468 $ 1,406,123

2.8 Repurchases of Units

The Series Trust has units which are repurchased at the holder®s option. The Series Trust classifies its puttable
instruments as liabilities in accordance with IAS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Presentation. The
amendment requires puttable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability to be
classified as equity where certain strict criteria are met. Those criteria include:

The puttable instruments must entitle the holder to a pro-rata share of net assets;

The puttable instruments must be the most subordinated class and class features must be identical;

There must be no contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other than the
obligation on the issuer to repurchase; and

The total expected cash flows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based substantially on the
profit or loss of the issuer.

As these conditions were met, the Series Trust"s units have been classified as equity at November 30, 2019 and
November 30, 2018.

Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Series
Trust®s total equity.
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Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if the
holder exercises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust.

Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust"s total equity per unit at the time of issue
or repurchase. The Series Trust"s equity per unit is calculated by dividing the total equity by the total number
of outstanding units.

The Selected Fund finances its operations by issuing redeemable shares which are puttable at the holder®s option
and entitles the holder to a proportional stake in the respective Series Trust®s net assets. The Series Trust
holds shares in the Selected Fund. The Series Trust"s maximum exposure to loss from its interests in the Selected
Fund is equal to the total fair value of its investments in the Selected Fund. Once the Series Trust has disposed
of its shares in the Selected Fund the Series Trust ceases to be exposed to any risk from the Selected Fund.

2.9 Indemnities

The Trustee and the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enter into certain contracts that contain a variety
of indemnifications. The Series Trust"s maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown. However, the Series
Trust has not had prior claims of losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote.

2.10 Receivables for Units Issued and Payables for Units Repurchased

Receivable for units issued is carried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement of Financial
Position date. Payable for repurchase of units is carried at the repurchase amount that is payable at the
Statement of Financial Position date.

2.11 Net income/(loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL

Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL includes realized and unrealized gains/losses on financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, interest income and dividend income. Net realized gain or
loss from financial instruments at FVTPL is calculated using the first in, first out method. Net realized
(loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL represents the difference between the cost of the
financial instruments and its settlement price of the sale trade. Net change in unrealized
(depreciation)/appreciation on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL represents the difference between the
carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the transaction price if it was
purchased in the current reporting period and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting period. Refer to
Note 7 for further details.

Interest income presented on the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprise interest on financial assets and
liabilities at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest basis.

Dividend income presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprise dividend on financial assets and

financial liabilities measured at FVTPL. Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is
established.
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2.12 Taxation

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting it from all local income,
profits and capital gains taxes until December 2, 2063. No such taxes are levied in the Cayman Islands at the
present time.

The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and capital
gains. Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Withholding taxes would be shown as a separate item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. No withholding tax

expense was paid during the years ended November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018.

The Selected Fund invests in securities domiciled in countries other than Cayman Islands. Many of these foreign
countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non-residents including the
Selected Fund. These capital gains taxes are required to be determined on a self-assessment basis and, therefore,
such taxes may not be deducted by the Selected Fund"s broker on a “"withholding® basis.

In accordance with 1AS 12 - Income Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recognize a tax liability when it is
probable that the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liability to be assessed on the Series Trust's
capital gains sourced from such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full knowledge of
all the facts and circumstances. The tax liability is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the
relevant taxation authorities using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. There is sometimes uncertainty about the way enacted tax law is applied to offshore
investment Series Trusts. This creates uncertainty about whether or not a tax liability will ultimately be paid
by the Series Trust. Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax liabilities management considers all of the
relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which could influence the likelihood of payment, including
any formal or informal practices of the relevant tax authorities.

As at November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018, the Manager has determined that the Series Trust did not have a
liability to record for any unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying financial statements. While this
represents the Manager®s best estimate there remains a risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempt to
collect taxes on capital gains earned by the Series Trust. This could happen without giving prior warning,
possibly on a retrospective basis, and could result in a loss to the Series Trust.

2.13 Investment in unconsolidated structured entities
The Series Trust has concluded that all investments in the unlisted Selected Fund, in which it holds an interest
but does not consolidate, meets the definition of structured entities due to the following:

the voting rights in these entities are not the dominant rights in deciding who controls them as they
relate to administrative tasks only;

the entities” activities are restricted by their respective investment strategy or offering documents; and
these entities have a narrow and well-defined objective to provide investment opportunities to investors.
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The nature of and risks associated with the Series Trust"s interest in the other funds are disclosed in Note 5.

3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS

The Net Asset Value of each unit of the Series Trust is calculated by dividing the Net Asset Value of the Series
Trust by the total number of units of the Series Trust then outstanding. The Administrator computes the Net Asset

Value of the Series Trust at the close of business on each dealing day.

The price of units, for all purposes, is calculated and paid in U.S. Dollars.

The minimum initial subscription must be no less than 1 unit. All unitholders must complete a subscription
application. The initial purchase price of units is $100 per unit. All payments for the units must be made in

U.S. Dollars. The Trustee may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

After the initial issue of units, an eligible investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent subscription
date at the relevant subscription price. All payments for the units shall be made in U.S. Dollars. The Trustee
may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

The Trustee or its duly designated agent must receive the subscription price for the units on or prior to 5:00
p.m. (Tokyo time) by no later than the second business day after the relevant subscription date. Subscription
applications are irrevocable.

The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of November 30, 2019 were as follows:

Net Asset Value per
Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding unit

Class AUnits $ 181,910,633 1,703,969 $ 106.7570

The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of November 30, 2018 were as follows:

Net Asset Value per
Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding unit

Class AUnits $ 112,009,490 1,140,213 $ 98.236

As of November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018 all issued units were held by one unitholder, who holds 100% of
interest in the net assets.

A unitholder may transfer its holdings in units only with the prior written consent of the Trustee which consent

shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. No transfer of units will be effective and binding on the Trustee
or unitholder until entered into the Series Trust's register of unitholders.
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Each unitholder may submit to the Trustee or its duly designated agent a repurchase notice requesting to have all
or a portion of its units repurchased at the Repurchase Price on the relevant repurchase date. Repurchase orders
may be submitted in units. If such notice is not in respect of the entire holding units of such unitholder
recorded in the register of unitholders then the Trustee in its sole discretion may apply a minimum repurchase
requirement of 1 unit. Repurchase notices are irrevocable.

At the time of each repurchase of units prior to the Final Repurchase Day, no repurchase fee is applied to each

unit being repurchased.

Contingent Deferred Sales Charge ("'CDSC™)
The repurchase proceeds payable to a unitholder may be subject to the deduction of the CDSC (if applicable).

For units that are repurchased prior to the fifth anniversary of the date of their issue (whether voluntarily or
by way of a compulsory repurchase), a CDSC, calculated as a percentage of the purchase price paid at the time of
subscription for such units will be charged by the Distributor in accordance with the following scale and paid to
Credit Suisse International.

Holding Period CDSC
1year or less 2.00%
More than 1 year to 2 years or less 1.60%
More than 2 years to 3 years or less 1.20%
More than 3 years to 4 years or less 0.80%
More than 4 years to 5 years or less 0.40%
More than 5 years None

For the purpose of calculating the holding period applicable to the CDSC, units will start ageing from the first
day of the month which follows the month in which such units were issued until the relevant Repurchase Day.

The CDSC (if applicable) will be deducted from the Repurchase Price and is payable by the relevant repurchasing
unitholder to the Fee Agent and not to the Series Trust.

Upon a Compulsory Repurchase Event occurring or the Series Trust terminating prior to the Final Repurchase Day,
the CDSC shall similarly apply; and the CDSC will be calculated as if the relevant units were repurchased on the
day on which the Compulsory Repurchase Event or termination of the Series Trust takes effect, unless the Manager
in its discretion determines otherwise.

In accordance with the terms of the Fee Agent Appointment Agreement, the Fee Agent shall continue to be entitled
to receive the CDSC if its appointment as Fee Agent is terminated.
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Amounts payable to the unitholder in connection with the repurchase of units of any class are paid in cash but
may be made in kind (or partially in kind) by the distribution of securities held by the Trustee to the extent
that the Trustee, in consultation with the Manager, determines it to be in the best interests of the unitholder.
If such a determination is made by the Trustee, distributions to all repurchasing unitholders on the same day are
made on the same basis.

Payment may also be made in such other currency that may be freely purchased with such applicable currency as a
unitholder may request, provided that any foreign exchange cost shall be deducted from the amount payable to such
unitholder. No such repurchase proceeds will bear interest prior to actual distribution.

During the years ended November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018, the proceeds from units issued, repurchased and
outstanding were as follows:

Classes of units

At
November 30, 2018

Proceeds from
units issued

Proceeds from
units repurchased

At
November 30, 2019

Class AUnits $ 114,788,375  $ 70,099,404  $ (10,755,611) $ 174,132,168
Total $ 114,788,375  $ 70,099,404  $ (10,755,611) $ 174,132,168
At Proceeds from Proceeds from At
Classes of units November 30, 2017 units issued units repurchased November 30, 2018
Class AUnits $ 87,616,689 $ 50,060,299 $ (22,888,613) $ 114,788,375
Total $ 87,616,689 $ 50,060,299 $ (22,888,613) $ 114,788,375

During the years ended November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018, the number of units

outstanding were as follows:

issued, repurchased and

Classes of units Novembe¢t30, 2018 Units issued Units repurchased Novembe¢t30, 2019
Class AUnits 1,140,213 668,533 (104,777) 1,703,969
Total 1,140,213 668,533 (104,777) 1,703,969
At At
Classes of units November 30, 2017 Units issued Units repurchased November 30, 2018
Class AUnits 873,602 498,099 (231,488) 1,140,213
Total 873,602 498,099 (231,488) 1,140,213

The issue and repurchase of units and payments in respect of such transactions will be suspended in any

circumstances where the calculation of the Net Asset Value per unit is suspended. The Trustee will inform

unitholder of such a suspension as soon as practicable after it is imposed or lifted. Subscription applications

and repurchase notices cannot be withdrawn during such suspension and will be processed for the next subscription
date or repurchase date, as the case may be.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Management makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The Series Trust may, from
time to time, hold financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets, such as over-the-counter
derivatives. Fair values of such instruments are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation
techniques (for example, models) are used to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed

by the Manager.

5. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

5.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust"s investment portfolio mainly comprises of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust®s activities
expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The management of these risks is carried out by the Manager

under policies approved by the Trustee.

The Series Trust may be materially affected by the actions of another entity investing in the Selected Fund. For
example, if another unitholder of the Selected Fund repurchases some or all of its interests in the Selected
Fund, the Selected Fund and, in turn, the Series Trust, may experience higher pro rata operating expenses,
thereby producing lower returns. Similarly, the Selected Fund may become less diverse due to repurchases from its
other unitholders, resulting in increased portfolio risk. The Selected Fund may restrict its investment
activities or be precluded from investing in certain instruments due to regulatory restrictions on certain of its
direct or indirect investors or otherwise, which may have an adverse effect on the performance of the Selected
Fund, and, in turn, the Series Trust.

(A) Market Risk

(i) Currency Risk
Investment in the Selected Fund and forward contracts in which the Series Trust invests may be denominated or
quoted in currencies other than the functional currency of the Series Trust. For this reason, changes in foreign

currency exchange rates can affect the value of the Series Trust"s portfolio.

Generally, when the Series Trust®"s functional currency rises in value against another currency, a security
denominated in that currency loses value because the currency is worth less giving effect to the conversion into
the Series Trust"s functional currency. Conversely, when the Series Trust"s functional currency decreases in
value against another currency, a security denominated in that currency gains value.
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This risk, generally known as "currency risk,” means that a strong functional currency of the Series Trust may
reduce returns to investors while a weak functional currency of the Series Trust may increase those returns.
Currency rates may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time for a number of reasons, including changes
in interest rates, intervention (or the failure to intervene) by the governments, central banks or supranational
entities such as the International Monetary Fund, or by the imposition of currency controls or other political
developments. As a result, the Series Trust"s investments in foreign-currency denominated securities may reduce
its returns. Certain positions taken by the Series Trust are designed to profit from forecasting currency price
movements. Predicting future prices is inherently uncertain and the losses incurred, if the market moves against
a position, will not be hedged. The speculative aspect of attempting to predict absolute price movements is
generally perceived to exceed that involved in attempting to predict relative price fluctuations.

Through the use of various types of foreign currency transactions, the Series Trust may be exposed to the
performance of a particular currency or currencies to contribute to the performance of the Series Trust. There
can be no assurance that the Manager will employ a successful currency program and the Series Trust could incur
losses attributable to its currency activities when the value of the functional currency weakens against the
other currencies of the Series Trust. In addition, the Series Trust will incur transaction costs in connection
with the currency strategy designated by the Manager.

The table below summarizes the Series Trust"s exposure to currency risks at November 30, 2019:

Financial Assets

at Fair Value Other Assets % of
Cash and Cash through Profit and Liabilities Net Asset
At November 30, 2019 Equivalents or Loss (Net) Net Value
Japanese Yen JPY $ - $ - $ (421) $ (421) 0.0%
- - (421) (421) 0.0%
United States Dol lar usD 5,474,108 175,127,882 1,309,064 181,911,054 100.0%
$ 5,474,108 $ 175,127,882 $ 1,308,643 $ 181,910,633 100.0%

The table below summarizes the Series Trust®s exposure to currency risks at November 30, 2018:

Financial Assets

at Fair Value Other Assets % of
Cash and Cash through Profit and Liabilities Net Asset
At November 30, 2018 Equivalents or Loss (Net) Net Value
Japanese Yen JPY $ - $ - 3 20,097 $ 20,097 0.0%
- - 20,097 20,097 0.0%
United States Dol lar usb 2,859,727 109,707,085 (577,419) 111,989,393 100.0%
$ 2,859,727 $ 109,707,085 $ (557,322) $ 112,009,490 100.0%
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The following tables summarize the sensitivity of the Series Trust's assets and liabilities to changes in foreign
exchange movements at November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018. The analysis is based on the assumptions that the
relevant foreign exchange rate increased/(decreased) against the U.S. Dollar by the percentages disclosed in the
table, with all other variables held constant. This represents management"s best estimate of a reasonably
possible shift in the foreign exchange rates, having regard to historical volatility of those rates.

Reasonably possible
shift in currency rate Impact to Series Trust
Currency 2019 Net Assets

JPY +/- 3.59% +/- % 15

Reasonably possible
shift in currency rate Impact to Series Trust
Currency 2018 Net Assets

JPY +/- 1.21% +/-  $ 243

(i1) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that prices of fixed income securities generally increase when interest rates
decline and decrease when interest rates increase. Prices of longer term securities generally change more in
response to interest rate changes than prices of shorter term securities. The Series Trust may lose money if
short-term or long-term interest rates rise sharply or otherwise change in a manner not anticipated by Series
Trust management. When interest rates fluctuate, the duration of the security may be used as an indication of the
degree of change in the debt price of the debt security. The bigger the security"s duration value, the larger the
change in the price of the debt security for a given movement in interest rates may be. Therefore, the Net Asset

Value may fluctuate.

Interest bearing assets held by the Series Trust are comprised of cash and cash equivalents whose maturity is
less than three months and the investment in the Selected Fund.

The yield on the Selected Fund®s (and indirectly, the Series Trust"s) investments may be sensitive to changes in
prevailing interest rates, which may result in a mismatch between the Selected Fund®s asset yield and borrowing
rates and consequently reduce or eliminate income derived from its investments.

If interest rates increase, prices of fixed income securities generally decline, reducing the value of the
Selected Fund"s (and indirectly, the Series Trust"s) investments. A major change in interest rates or a
significant decline in the market value of the Master Fund*s (and indirectly, the Trust"s) investments, or other
market event, could cause the value of the investments of the Master Fund"s investors (and indirectly the
unitholders® investments in the Series Trust), or its yield, to decline.

The Series Trust may invest in municipal bond securities through its indirect exposure to the investments of the

Selected Fund. Any changes to prevailing interest rates or changes in expectations of future rates may result in
an increase or decrease in the value of the securities held.

152/243



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

At November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018, should interest rates have lowered or risen by 50 basis points with
all other variables remaining constant, the increase or decrease in total comprehensive income of the Series
Trust (being increase in net assets attributable to the holder of units from operations for the period) would
amount to approximately $27,351 and $14,283, respectively, assuming that the cash position will be held for one
year.

(iii) Market Price Risk

The market price of investments owned by the Series Trust and securities held by the Selected Fund may go up or
down, sometimes rapidly or unpredictably. Securities may decline in value due to factors affecting securities
markets generally or particular industries represented in the securities markets. The value of a security may
decline due to general market conditions which are not specifically related to a particular company, such as real
or perceived adverse economic conditions, supply and demand for particular securities or instruments, changes in
the general outlook for corporate earnings, changes in interest or currency rates or adverse investor sentiment.
They may also decline due to factors which affect a particular industry or industries, such as labor shortages or
increased production costs and competitive conditions within an industry. During a general downturn in the
securities markets, multiple asset classes may decline in value simultaneously. Equity securities generally have
greater price volatility than fixed income securities.

An increase in market prices of the investment in the Selected Fund of 1% at November 30, 2019 and November 30,
2018, would have increased the total equity by $1,751,279 and $1,097,071, respectively. A decrease of 1% would,
all else being equal, have an equal but opposite effect.

For the Selected Fund, the investments are primarily concentrated in the United States of America at November 30,
2019 and November 30, 2018.

(B) Credit Risk

Changes in an issuer”s credit rating or the market"s perception of an issuers creditworthiness may affect the
value of the Series Trust®s investment in that issuer. The degree of credit risk depends on both the financial
condition of the issuer and the terms of the obligation.

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the credit risk associated with debt
instruments that may be held by the Selected Fund. The increased credit risk may prevent the Selected Fund"s
investment objective and consequently the Series Trust"s investment objective from being achieved. All
transactions in listed securities held by the Selected Fund are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved
brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker
has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the securities have been received by the broker. The
trade will fail if either party fails to meet their obligation.

The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust"s credit position on an on-going basis.
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Municipal Bond securities in which the Selected Fund may invest could be subject to the credit risk of the
underlying assets and in the event of default of such assets and the exhaustion of any underlying credit support,
the Selected Fund may not recover its full investment. Furthermore, it is possible that some issuers of fixed
income securities in which the Selected Fund invests will be unable to make the required payments on their debt
securities held by the Selected Fund. Debt securities could also go up or down in value based on the perceived
creditworthiness of issuers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of all financial assets of the Series Trust as of November 30, 2019 and
November 30, 2018 is the carrying amounts as shown on the Statement of Financial Position. No collateral or other
credit enhancements are held by the Series Trust. None of these assets are impaired or past due.

The clearing and depository operations for the Selected Fund"s security transactions are mainly concentrated with
the Custodian. At November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018, substantially all cash and cash equivalents and
investments are placed in custody with the Custodian, with a Fitch credit rating of A+.

The following table summarizes the credit quality of the Selected Fund®s debt portfolio at November 30, 2019 as a
percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund.

Rating* % of Net Assets

Aaa 5.5%
Aal 5.9%
Aa2 23.1%
Aa3 18.4%
Al 21.6%
A2 13.9%
A3 2.0%
Baal 4.4%
Baa? 1.7%
Baa3 1.5%
98.0%

* Security ratings, if any, are obtained from S&P~s/Moody”s Investor Service.
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The following table summarizes the credit quality of the Selected Fund"s debt portfolio at November 30, 2018 as a

percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund.

Rating* % of Net Assets

Aaa 5.7%
Aal 7.4%
Aa2 22._9%
Aa3 20.3%
Al 21.0%
A2 12.9%
A3 1.6%
Baal 5.2%
Baa2 1.3%
SP-1+ 0.2%
98.5%

* Security ratings, if any, are obtained from S&P~s/Moody”s Investor Service.

(C) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Series Trust"s
investments in illiquid securities may reduce the returns of the Series Trust because it may be unable to sell
the illiquid securities at an advantageous time or price. To the extent that the Series Trust"s principal
investment strategies involve derivatives or securities with substantial market and/or credit risk, the Series
Trust will tend to have the greatest exposure to liquidity risk.
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The tables below analyze the Series Trust"s financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the
remaining period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

At November 30, 2019 Less than 1 month 1 - 3 months Total

Payables for:
Purchase of investment in the

Selected Fund $ 1,000,000 $ - 3 1,000,000
Fee agent fees 303,034 - 303,034
Professional fees 74,110 - 74,110
Investment management fees 57,164 - 57,164
Distribution fees 36,256 - 36,256
Administrator fees 31,638 - 31,638
Custody fees 14,549 - 14,549
Transfer agent fees 6,215 - 6,215
Agent member company fees 2,858 - 2,858
Registration fees 1,162 - 1,162
Printing fees 421 - 421

Contractual cash out flows (excluding
net assets attributable to the holder of

units) $ 1,527,407 $ - 3 1,527,407

At November 30, 2018 Less than 1 month 1 - 3 months Total

Payables for:
Fee agent fees $ 337,384  $ - 3 337,384
Units repurchased 211,303 - 211,303
Investment management fees 97,386 - 97,386
Professional fees 69,908 - 69,908
Distribution fees 22,504 - 22,504
Administrator fees 9,668 - 9,668
Custody fees 5,919 - 5,919
Agent member company fees 4,890 - 4,890
Transfer agent fees 1,185 - 1,185
Other liabilities 1,853 - 1,853

Contractual cash out flows (excluding
net assets attributable to the holder of
units) $ 762,000 $ - $ 762,000

The Manager monitors the Series Trust"s liquidity position on an on-going basis.

Liquidity risk is managed by investing no more than 15% of the Net Asset Value in illiquid assets.

There were no Series Trust's derivative financial instruments at November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018 with
gross settlement.
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Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the liquidity risk associated with
unitholder repurchases in accordance with the terms in the Selected Fund"s Prospectus. The Series Trust is
managed to include liquid investments sufficient to meet normal liquidity needs although substantial repurchases
of Units in the Series Trust could require the Selected Fund to liquidate its investments more rapidly than
otherwise desirable in order to raise cash for the repurchases. These factors could adversely affect the value of
the units repurchased and the valuation of the units that remain outstanding and the liquidity of the Series
Trust®s remaining assets if more liquid assets have been sold to meet the repurchases.

There were no repurchase fees applied in respect to the Selected Fund for the years ended November 30, 2019 and
November 30, 2018.

(E) Risk Management
The Series Trust"s Investment Manager's team is supported by certain risk management systems and professionals,
which provide regular reporting on all portfolio positions and quantitative risk measures.

The capital of the Series Trust is represented by the net assets attributable to the holder of units. The amount
of net assets attributable to the holder of units can change significantly on a daily basis as the Series Trust
is subject to daily subscriptions and repurchases at the discretion of the unitholder. The Series Trust's
objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for the unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital
base to support the development of the investment activities of the Series Trust. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Series Trust"s policy is to perform the following:

Monitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative to the liquid assets and adjust the amount
of distributions the Series Trust pays to the holder of units.

Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Series Trust.
The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to the holder of units.
5.2 Additional Series Trust"s Risks
(A) Custody Risk
Neither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Series Trust"s entire holding of indirect

investments. The Custodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected to act as custodians may become insolvent,
causing the Series Trust to lose all or a portion of the funds or securities held by those custodians.
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(B) Risk of Indemnification

The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Custodian, and other parties, and each of their respective
agents, principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Series Trust under certain circumstances which may result in a decrease in Net Asset Value per unit.

(C) Settlement Risk

Settlement and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in the United
States, the European Union and Japan. Foreign settlement and clearance procedures and trade regulations also may
involve certain risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) not typically associated with the
settlement of United States investments. At times, settlements in certain foreign countries have not kept pace
with the number of securities transactions. These problems may make it difficult for the Selected Fund and
ultimately, the Manager to carry out transactions for the account of the Series Trust. If the Manager cannot
settle or is delayed in settling a purchase of securities, it may miss attractive investment opportunities and
certain of the Series Trust"s assets may be uninvested with no return earned thereon for some period.

If the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a sale of securities,
the Series Trust may lose money if the value of the underlying security then declines or, if it has contracted to
sell the security to another party; the Series Trust could be liable for any losses incurred.

(D) Derivatives

The Manager may use derivative instruments to hedge the Series Trust"s investments or to seek to enhance the
Series Trust"s returns. Derivatives allow the risk exposure of the Series Trust to increase or decrease more
quickly and efficiently than other types of instruments. Derivatives are volatile and involve significant risks,

including:

Credit Risk - the risk that the counterparty (the party on the other side of the transaction) on a derivative

transaction will be unable to honor its financial obligation to the Series Trust.

Leverage Risk - the risk associated with certain types of investments or trading strategies that relatively
small market movements may result in large changes in the value of an investment. Certain investments or
trading strategies that involve leverage can result in losses that greatly exceed the amount originally

invested.

Liquidity Risk - the risk that certain securities may be difficult or impossible to sell at the time that the
seller would like or at the price that the seller believes the security is currently worth.
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The Manager may use derivatives for hedging purposes for the Series Trust, including anticipatory hedges. Hedging
is a strategy in which the Manager uses a derivative to offset the risks associated with other Series Trust's
holdings. While hedging can reduce losses, it can also reduce or eliminate gains or cause losses if the market
moves in a manner different from that anticipated by the Manager or if the cost of the derivative outweighs the
benefit of the hedge. Hedging also involves the risk that changes in the value of the derivative will not match
those of the holdings being hedged as expected by the Manager, in which case any losses on the holdings being
hedged may not be reduced and may be increased. There is no assurance that the Series Trust"s hedging strategy
will reduce risk or that hedging transactions are either available or cost effective. The Manager is not required
to use hedging for the Series Trust and may choose not to do so. Because the Manager may use derivatives to seek
to enhance the Series Trust®s returns, its investments will expose the Series Trust to the risks outlined above
to a greater extent than if the Manager used derivatives solely for hedging purposes. Use of derivatives to seek

to enhance returns is considered speculative.

As of November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018 there were no Series Trust derivative assets and derivative

liabilities subject to netting arrangements and similar arrangements.

(E) Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institutions and counterparties, including banks and brokerage firms, such as the Custodian, with
which the Manager or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Series Trust, may encounter financial
difficulties and default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Series Trust. Any such default
could result in material losses to the Series Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge collateral for the
account of the Series Trust to the counterparties in order to secure certain transactions. No collateral was
pledged by the Manager during the years ended November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018.

The Series Trust has not offset any financial assets or financial liabilities in the Statement of Financial

Position.

(F) Generated Income and Distributions

There is no guarantee that there will be any Generated Income. Distributions may be paid in whole or in part out
of investment principal attributable to the units or, alternatively, the Generated Income may be zero. A
distribution can in effect result in a return of an investor"s initial capital or capital gains thereby eroding
that capital to the extent the distribution exceeds available income. In consequence of this possibility,
investors seeking capital preservation may not achieve this given probable deterioration in the value of the
Series Trust"s investments caused by declining asset values and a return of capital to investors by way of
distribution. If the Series Trust is not profitable, the Repurchase Price a unitholder receives back in respect
of a repurchase of units may be less than the unitholder®s initial investment.
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The Generated Income partially relies on the receipt of distributions paid by the Selected Fund. Should the
Selected Fund fail to pay any distributions or pay less than anticipated, or due to a rise in the non-treaty tax
rate applicable to the Series Trust, then the Series Trust will gain correspondingly less than investors may
previously have expected. Furthermore, if the interest rate at which the distributions received accrue falls
during the monthly period, this may also lead to the Generated Income being lower than expected.

(G) No Interest in the Selected Fund
The return on the units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the Selected Fund. An investment in
units does not give a unitholder a direct interest in the Selected Fund.

(H) Early Termination of the Series Trust
Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for December 1, 2163, the Final Repurchase Day
will be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event occur.

5.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation
The Series Trust applies IFRS 13 Fair value measurement, and utilizes the last traded market price for its fair
valuation inputs for both financial assets and liabilities.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Series Trust uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at each period end date. Valuation techniques used for non-standardized financial instruments
such as options, currency swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives, include the use of comparable recent
arm™s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants making the
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

For instruments for which there is no active market, the Series Trust may use internally developed models, which
are usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the industry. Some
of the inputs to these models may not be market observable and are therefore estimated based on assumptions. The
output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and
valuation techniques employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant to the positions the Series Trust holds.
Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for additional factors including model risk,

liquidity risk and counterparty risk.

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance

of the inputs used in making the measurements.
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The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that

the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its
entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on
unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input
to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or
liability.

The determination of what constitutes "observable® requires significant judgment by the Administrator, under
advisement of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisement of the Manager, considers observable data to be
that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not
proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of November 30, 2019 in valuing
the Series Trust"s financial assets:

(Unadjusted) Quoted Significant Significant
Prices inActive Other Unobservable

Financial Assets at Fair Value Markets for Identical Observable Inputs Fair Value at
Through Profit or Loss Investments (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) (Level 3) 11/30/19
Investment in the Selected Fund
Municipal Core Fund USD Class $ - $ 175,127,882 $ - 3 175,127,882
Financial assets, at fair value
through profit or loss $ - $ 175,127,882 $ - $ 175,127,882

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of November 30, 2018 in valuing
the Series Trust"s financial assets and liabilities:

(Unadjusted) Quoted Significant Significant
Prices inActive Other Unobservable

Financial Assets at Fair Value Markets for Identical Observable Inputs Fair Value at
Through Profit or Loss Investments (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) (Level 3) 11/30/18
Investment in the Selected Fund
Municipal Core Fund USD Class $ - $ 109,707,085 $ - 3 109,707,085
Financial assets, at fair value
through profit or loss $ - 3 109,707,085 $ - 3 109,707,085
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During the years ended November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018, there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and
3.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified
within Level 2. These include over-the-counter derivatives and debt securities. As Level 2 investments include
positions that are not traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be
adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on available market
information.

For purposes of calculating the Net Asset Value of the Selected Fund, fixed income securities for which market
quotes are readily available are normally valued on the basis of quotes obtained from established market makers
or pricing services and are classified as Level 2 investments in the financial statements of the Selected Fund.
Forward contracts are valued using observable inputs which can generally be corroborated by market data and are
therefore classified as Level 2 investments in the financial statements of the Selected Fund. As of November 30,
2019 and November 30, 2018 all financial assets and liabilities were classified as Level 2 investments.

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

(i) At November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018, cash and cash equivalents and all other assets and liabilities
(including prepaid fees and receivables for units issued and payables for administrator fees, units
repurchased, investment management fees, professional fees, fee agent fees, distribution fees, custody
fees, agent member company fees, transfer agent fees, purchase of the investment in the Selected Fund,
registration fees, printing fees and other liabilities) are deemed short-term financial assets and
liabilities whose carrying amounts approximate fair value because of their short-term nature. Refer to Note
2 for a description of the valuation techniques.

5.4 Investments in unconsolidated structured entities

As of November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018, the Selected Fund"s net asset value was JPY 22,835,016,826
(approximately US$ 208,558,013) and JPY 16,126,211,686 (approximately US$ 142,043,616), respectively. As of
November 30, 2019 the Selected Fund held total investments of JPY 22,926,487,085 comprising of fixed income
securities (corporate bonds, municipal bonds & notes, and time deposits) of JPY 22,981,915,799 and forward
contracts of JPY (55,428,714). As of November 30, 2018 the Selected Fund held total investments of JPY
15,971,717,848 comprising of fixed income securities (corporate bonds, municipal bonds & notes, and time
deposits) of JPY 15,995,504,867 and forward contracts of JPY (23,787,019). The valuation of investments in
unconsolidated structured entities represents the amount the Series Trust would expect to receive if it were to
liquidated or redeem its investments subject to the underlying fund®s liquidity or redemption restrictions and
costs.
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The Selected Fund is financed through equity capital provided by investors, include the Series Trust. During the
years ended November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018, the Series Trust did not provide any other financial support

to the Selected Fund and has no intention of providing financial or other support to this entity.

The rights attached to the Series Trust®s holding in the Selected Fund is similar to those of other investors.
Subscriptions into the Selected Fund are governed by the rights stipulated in their offering documents. The
Series Trust has the ability to liquidate or redeem its investments periodically in accordance with the
provisions of the respective fund agreements. Refer to Note 2 for information regarding the investment objectives
and liquidity provisions of the Selected Fund.

6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward Contracts

The Investment Manager for the Selected Fund enters into forward contracts for the Selected Fund by buying
forward contracts, under normal circumstances in an amount equal, to the extent possible, to approximately 100%
of the USD exposure of the Net Asset Value (excluding unrealized currency gain or losses).

The Investment Manager enters into forward contracts for the Series Trust by buying forward contracts.

As of November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018 there were no open forward contracts in the Series Trust.

7. NET LOSS/GAIN ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

November 30, 2019 November 30, 2018

Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
and loss consist of the following:

Net realized loss on investments in the Selected Fund $ (59,020) $ (466,702)
Net realized loss on investments in forward contracts (168) (539)
Total net realized loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profitor loss $ (59,188) $ (467,241)

Movement in net unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) on investments

in the Selected Fund $ 9,335,436 $ (4,345,693)
Movement in unrealized appreciation on investment in forward
contracts - 4
Total net change in unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) on financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profitor loss $ 9,335,436 % (4,345,689)
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8. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

8.1 Fees and Expenses

(A) Administrator Fees

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.06% on the first US$500 million of the net assets, 0.05% on the
next US$500 million of the net assets and 0.04% on the net assets over US$1 billion, subject to a monthly minimum
fee of $3,750. The fees earned by the Administrator during the years ended November 30, 2019 and November 30,
2018, and outstanding fees payable to the Administrator as of November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018 have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Custodian receives asset based and transactional charges dependent on market demographics of the assets. The
fees earned by the Custodian during the years ended November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018, and outstanding fees
payable to the Custodian as of November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018 have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(C) Distribution Fees

The Distributor receives an annual fee of 0.25% of the Net Asset Value payable monthly in arrears. The
Distribution Fees are payable by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager, out of the assets of the Series
Trust. The fees earned by the Distributor during the years ended November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018, and
outstanding fees payable to the Distributor as of November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018 have been disclosed in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(D) Transfer Agent Fees

The Transfer Agent receives an annual fee of 0.01% of the Net Asset Value and a $10 fee per transaction out of
the assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Transfer Agent during the years ended November 30, 2019
and November 30, 2018, and outstanding fees payable to the Transfer Agent as of November 30, 2019 and November
30, 2018 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position,

respectively.

(E) Professional Fees

Professional fees include legal and audit fees. The fees paid during the years ended November 30, 2019 and
November 30, 2018, and outstanding fees payable as of November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018, have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

8.2 Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustee, Investment
Manager, Fee Agent, Manager and Agent Member Company are all related parties to the Series Trust.

164/243



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

US Municipal Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended November 30, 2019
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

There were no other transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of business.

(A) Trustee Fees

The Trustee is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee a fixed annual fee of $10,000 payable
annually in advance. The fees earned by the Trustee during the years ended November 30, 2019 and November 30,
2018, and outstanding fees payable to the Trustee as of November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018 have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively, as a
part of Fee Agent fees.

(B) Investment Management Fees

The Investment Manager receives an annual fee of 0.20% of the Net Asset Value payable quarterly in arrears. The
fees earned by the Investment Manager during the years ended November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018, and
outstanding fees payable to the Investment Manager as of November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018 have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

The Investment Manager of the Selected Fund receives a fee at the rate of 0.32% per annum, paid monthly in
arrears out of the assets of the Selected Fund based on the average Net Asset Value in the preceding month.

(C) Fee Agent Fees

The Fee Agent receives an annual fee of 0.12% of Net Assets Value (the "Operational Costs Fees™) and 0.57% of Net
Assets Value (the "Sales Administrative Fees'), accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day. The
Operational Costs Fees are paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Trustee out of the assets of the Series
Trust. The fees earned by the Fee Agent during the years ended November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018, and
outstanding fees payable to the Fee Agent as of November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018 have been disclosed in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

The Fee Agent is responsible for paying certain ongoing and operational costs and expenses of the Series Trust,
including manager fees and the following costs and expenses, which are, in reasonable judgement of the Fee Agent,

determined as ordinary costs and expenses (the "Ordinary Costs™):

(i) auditing costs that are not included in the audit fees and expenses;
(i) annual fees payable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust to government bodies and agencies; and
(ii1) insurance costs (if any).

For the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payment of the sales administrative fees,
investment manager fees, audit fees, formation expenses, distribution fees, administration fees, custody fees,
any broker fees relating to security transactions, any costs relating to the Offering Memorandum and Appendix 25
and other similar offering documents and the costs relating to the preparation, printing, translation and
delivery of such documents and any taxes relating to the purchase or disposal of securities, legal or
compensation costs, licensing and any other extraordinary costs and expenses that would not usually occur.
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To the extent that the Operational Costs Fee is not sufficient to cover the Ordinary Costs, the Fee Agent is
liable for any outstanding amounts. Any amounts remaining following payment of the Ordinary Costs shall be
retained by the Fee Agent as its remuneration for acting as fee agent in respect of the Series Trust.

The Operational Costs Fees and the Sales Administrative Fees accrue daily on an actual / 365 day count fraction
basis and are payable quarterly in arrears in the amount accrued, from and excluding, for the first accrual
period only, the initial closing day, and for all other accrual periods, the last day of each calendar quarter.

(D) Manager Fees
The Manager is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee, a management fee of $5,000 per annum payable
monthly in arrears, as a part of Fee Agent fees.

(E) Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company is entitled to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value payable quarterly
in arrears. The Agent Member Company Fees are paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager out of the
assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Agent Member Company during the years ended November 30, 2019
and November 30, 2018 and outstanding fees payable to the Agent Member Company as of November 30, 2019 and
November 30, 2018 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial
Position, respectively.

9. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY
The Series Trust may borrow up to 10% of its Net Asset Value if required to facilitate short term cash flows.
During the years ended November 30, 2019 and November 30, 2018, the Series Trust did not incur any borrowings.

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Since the start of January 2020, the outbreak of coronavirus, which is a rapidly evolving situation, has
adversely impacted global commercial activities. The rapid development and fluidity of this situation precludes
any prediction as its ultimate impact, which may have a continued adverse impact on economic and market
conditions and trigger a period of global economic slowdown. Manager and the Trustee do not believe that there is
any financial impact to the financial statements as at November 30, 2019 as a result of this subsequent event.

Management and the Trustee are monitoring developments relating to coronavirus and is coordinating its
operational response based on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from global health
organizations, relevant governments, and general pandemic response best practices.

The Trustee has evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through May 12, 2020, the date on which these
financial statements were available to be issued. Effective December 1, 2019 through May 12, 2020, there were
subscriptions of $23,532,835 and repurchases of $10,762,079. During the same period, there were distributions of
$901,041. There are no other subsequent events to report as relates to the Series Trust.
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2020
197,767,318 21,523,017,218
2,637,372 287,025,195
195,129,946 21,235,992,023

1,824,392

106.96 11,640
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215,847,524

17,243,829

3,148,703,484

208,113,484

34

257,846,294,972

171/243



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2017 2017 12 31 2018
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38 59 131
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2018 12 31

2018 2017

USD USD
22,534 2,452 11,246 1,224
22,534 2,452 11,246 1,224
4 22,534 2,452 11,246 1,224
5 205,000 22,310 190,000 20,678
8 1 41 4
227,542 24,763 201,287 21,906
6 (121,067)  (13,176)  (111,931)  (12,181)
106,475 11,588 89,356 9,725
106,475 11,588 89,356 9,725
7 - - - -
106,475 11,588 89,356 9,725

15
2018 IFRS 15

18
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2018 12 31

2018 2017

usD UsD
9 1,213,367 132,051 1,016,181 110,591
10 206,873 22,514 299,223 32,564
1,420,240 154,565 1,315,404 143,155
10 3,735 406 5,374 585
3,735 406 5,374 585
11 735,000 79,990 735,000 79,990
681,505 74,168 575,030 62,581
1,416,505 154,158 1,310,030 142,571
1,420,240 154,565 1,315,404 143,155

15
2018 IFRS 15

N o S\

18
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2018 12 31
usb usD usD
2018
2018
2018 735,000 79,990 575,030 62,581 1,310,030 142,571
- - 106,475 11,588 106,475 11,612
2018 12 31 735,000 79,990 681,505 74,168 154,158 154,484
2017
2017
2017 735,000 79,990 485,674 52,856 1,220,674 132,846
- - 89,356 9,725 9,725 9,745
2017 12 31 735,000 79,990 575,030 62,581 1,310,030 142,571

18
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2018 12 31
2018 2017
UsD USD
106,475 11,588 89,356 9,725
4 (22,534) (2,452)  (11,246) (1,224)
(8) 1) (41) 4)
83,933 9,134 78,069 8,496
92,358 10,051 176,907 19,253
92,358 10,051 176,907 19,253
(1,639) (178) 1,856 202
(1,639) (178) 1,856 202
174,652 19,007 256,832 27,951
4 22,534 2,452 11,246 1,224
22,534 2,452 11,246 1,224
197,186 21,460 268,078 29,175
1,016,181 110,591 748,103 81,416

1,213,367 132,051 1,016,181 110,591

9 1,213,367 132,051 1,016,181 110,591

1,213,367 132,051 1,016,181 110,591

15
2018 IFRS 15

18
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©)

uSD

1771243



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

O

@

@™

@

IFRS

IFRS
IFRS ECL

),

178/243



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@
Q)
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(iii)

(b)
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)

Gii)
(iv)
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(vi) @
(vin) @ (i)

®

IFRS 2018

IFRS 2014 IASB 1AS 39 IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
IAS 39
IFRS IFRS
IFRS 2018
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2.
2017 10 1ASB IFRS 2019
2018
IFRS
IFRS 15 2014 IASB IFRS 15
IFRS 15 IFRS 15
IFRS 15

IFRS 15
IFRS 15 IFRS
2016 IASB IFRS 15 IFRS 15

IFRS 15

IFRS 15 IFRS 15
2018
IFRS 15 IFRS 15

2018
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3.
1ASB IFRS
()
17
4.
2018 2017
22,534 11,246
22,534 11,246
5.
2018 2017
205,000 190,000
205,000 190,000
6.
2018 2017
(1,315) (1,311)
(545) -
(1,860) (1,311)
(3,117) (3,142)
(106,500) (105,033)
(9,590) (2,445)

(119,207) (110, 620)

(121,067) (111,931)
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7.
2020 18
8.
2018 12 31
5,000 2017 5,000 2018 12 31
a
(o
a
CS
CS
J-REIT Fund
usS

NB  MYAM REIT
UK

182/243



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AMP

us

AMP REIT
J-REIT

US REIT

17-20

5-7

CAT

2018 2017

1,213,367 1,016,181
1,213,367 1,016,181
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10.
2018 2017
206,873 192,723
- 106,500
206,873 299,223
2018 2017
3,735 5,374
3,735 5,374
11.
@
2018 2017

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000

®
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2018

©
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O
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13.
a)
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
- 205,000 205,000 - 191,632 191,632
- 205,000 205,000 - 191,632 191,632
- - - 1,871 1,632 3,503
735,000 - 735,000 735,000 - 735,000
735,000 - 735,000 736,871 1,632 738,503
b)
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
- 205,000 205,000 - 190,000 190,000
c)
2018 2017
106,500 105,033

106,500 105,033
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Credt? Sitier Manopravent (Cayman) Limired
Frmancial Bateednts for the vear ended 11 Decembaer 2008

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended
31 December 2018

Refercnce
b Pl

2018 2017"
Statement of profit or loss (LUSD)
Interest income 23.534 11,246
- of which Interest income from instruments at amortised cost 22,534 11.246
Net interest income’ 4 22,534 11,246
Service Fee Income 5 2005, 000 | S0, 000
Other revenues g 41
Net revenues’ . e 227,542 201,287
Cieneral, administrative and trading expenses 6 (121.067) (111,931
Operating profit before allowance and taxat ion” 106,475 89,356
Profit before tax 106,475 89,356
[neome tax expense T S =X
Profit aflter iax 106,475 B9.356

‘Companive fiperes hine been seclassiiod 10 confiem with ourment year prosentatmos for ihrma oher San Sk b ghicghond a faomoe 2 helow, Fefer 1o Node
15 For Harihier mfrmation.
Pt Coomapanry B iraniafly sgplbed IFRS 13 i) O ai @ | Pamuay D013 Hawevor, comparativg normason |y not resised wder these ramiti os methodi chaws.
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Credit Snaad Macpement {mman) Limited
Firatmcim' abemriils I‘IF P ot emcled 31 Devdmber JO1Y

Statement of financial position at 31 December 2018

Raleranos
e
2018 27
Assets (USD)

Lash and dug from banks 9 Lal3.367 L6181
Other assets 1 206,873 200 333
Total assets 1,420,240 1,315,404

Liabilities (USD)

Other liabilities 10 3.735 5.374

_Total liahilifies 3,735 5374
Shareholders” equity (USI

.Share capital 1 735,000 735,000
Retained earnings 681,505 375,030
Total shareholders’ equity 1,416,505 1.310,030
Total liabilitics and sharcholders’ equity 1,420,240 1,315,404

Wgmtparative Bpaes hive been reclin Sed Ko confam with cusrerd year predentaion for dome ofher fhan thos highlighesd in footnoty 3 below. Raiay 8o Nose
1 o fartdary i foarmation
i Conmpanny b irtially appdied FRS 19 amd 9wy | Jarcary 3018 \ v mot rraraed urder the i At on metds chosm

L . * 3 i i ¥ lla}
Approved and authorised for ssue by the board of directors on [F_J" obs le Wicalas Popavoine

i _ Director
redit Sulsse Meanagemert {Coyman) Limigag

)
)
1 Dircetor
)
)
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el Sutae Minvgesaint (oo Limired
Financial staencmts for the year evded 31 Decomber 2008

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2018

Share Retained
capital  earnines Total

2018
2018 Statement of changes in equity (USD)

_Balance at 1 January 2018 T3S000 575030 1,300,030
Profit for the vear — 106,475 106,475
Balance at 31 December 2018 T35.0010 681,505 1,416,505
2017
2017 Statement of changes in cquity (USD)

_Balance at 1 January 2017 735,000
Profitfortheyear - — 89356 89336

Balange at 31 December 2017 735000 575,030 1,310,030
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vl Suinee Managpeswent (Caynian) Limined
Fimascial stcatements far the yoar qaded 31 December 2015

Statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 December 2018

Relerenie
i Naie

2018 2017
Cash flows (rom operating activities (USD)
Profit for the year 106,475 89,356
Adjustmenis to reconcile net profit to net cash
generated from operating activities
MNon-cash items included in net profit before tax
and other adjusiments:
Interest income 4 (22,534) {11.246)
Unrealised gain and loss (&) {41
Cash generated from before changes in operating
assets and liabilities 83,933 78,069
Net decrease in operating assefs:
Other assels 92,358 176,907
Net decrease in operating assets 91 358 176,907
Met (decrease)linerease in operating liabilities:
Other liabilities and provisions (1.63%9) 1.856
Net idecrease)/increase in operating liabilities {1.639) 1.856
Income laxes pakd — —
Net cash generated from operating activities 174,652 156,832
Cash Mlows from financing activitics (LISD)
Iferest income 4 22,534 11,246
MNet cash gencrated from financing activities 22,50 11,2446
Met inerease in cash and cash equivalents 197,186 268,078
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 1,016,181 748,103
Cash and cash equivalents ai the end of year
(LS 1,213,367 1,016,181
Cash and due from banks G 1,283,367 1.0016,181
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of vear 1,213,367 1,016,181

Compewive figures havy beon eeclasufied o confoem wilh curmeml yoar prossnd stion for foems of e (he thase highlighted in fsotsoie 2 below. Refr 8o Mok
13 s Rindes b R,
T Compary has insnally spplied HES 1§ and Fas @ | jemey B8 Howgwpr, comgarsiivg mibrmstion is nof resisied ender fheir trandtion mathod chowm
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Credlir Suiige Nrmapemens Caymant Limited
Finamein! mesemenn fir tee yeor eaded 7 December 2018

Notes to the financial statements

Principal activities

Credit Suisse Management {Cavman) Limited {the “Company™) is incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited labilit. The Company’s principal activities are the creation of trusts and the
administration and management of assets in the trusts, The Company’'s registered office is ¢/o Maples
Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cavman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

Significant Accounting Policies
Statement af complignee

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable | niernational Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™), which collective term includes afl applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (“1ASs™) and Interpretations issued
by International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"). A summary of the significamt accounting
policies adopred by the Company is set out below,

Busis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management 1o make
judgements, cstimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assels, liabilities, income and expenses, The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are niot readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an engoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, o in the period of the revision and future periods if the revizion affects both current and future
periods,

Farelgn currency

The company's functional and presentation currency is US Dollars (USD) Foreign currency
transactions during the year are translated inte United States Dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
inte United States Dollars a1 the foreign exchange rates ruling ai the cnd of the reporting peried.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss,

Nor-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated into United States Dollars using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates,
MNon-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies thar are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined. Forcign
currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss,
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it Sadees Mmeapemen) [Copmang Limitesd
Fimame il siastmdte o dhe ear ended 3 Divcvmber MIF

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Coash amd cash equivaleniy

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, highly liguid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

her assets

{her assets are initially recognised at fair value and thereafier stated at amortised cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtfil debts (see note 2(g)), except where the receivables are interest-Tree loans
made 10 related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment for bad and doubtful debis,

Provislens and comtingent labilitles

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Company has a legal
or constrictive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate cash be made. Where the time
value of money i material, provisions are stated at the presemt value of the expenditure expected to
setthe the obligation,

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amoum cannol be
estimated reliably, the obligation ks disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of ecopomic benefits is remote, Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence of non-occurrence of one or mone future events are also disclosed as contingent liahilities
untess the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Trspeiriricit

The carrying amount of the Company’s assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period 1o
determine whether ihere is any objective evidence of impairment. 1fany such objective evidence exisis,
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated at the end of each reporting period. An impairment loss is
recopnised whenever the carrving amount of an 4sset exceeds 15 recoverable amount.  Impairment
Iosses are recognised in the profit or loss,

Under IFRS %, the new impairment requirements apply primarily to financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The impairment requirements have changed from an incurred loss model under IFRS 9
to an expected credit loss ("ECL™) model under 1FRS 9 by incorporating reasonable and supportable
forecasts of fulure economic conditions available a1 the reporting date. The adeption of this does not
have a material impact 1o the Company's financial statements,

Revenue recognifion

Provided that it is probable thar the economic benefits will flow 1o the Company and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, management fee income is recognised in profil or loss
when ihe investment management service is provided.
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o Suisar Mitmapeniend fmowan) Limimed'
Financial aratensemts for the year ended 31 Decembser 2018

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
i Expenses

All expenses are recognised in profit and loss on anacerual basis,
(i Related pariles

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Company if:
{a) A person, or @ ¢lose member of that person’s family, is related to the Company if that person:
{i}  has control of joint control over the Company;
(i}  has significant influence over the Company; or
(i) s @ member of the key management personnel of the Company or the Company's parent.

b} An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

{i)  Theentity and the Company are members of the same group {which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary iz related to the others),

(i)  Oneentity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity {or an associate or joint verture
of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member),

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party,

(ivli  One entity is a joint venture of a third party and the other entity is an associate of the third
:FIEH}'.

(vi The entity is a posti-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Company or an entity related 1o the Company.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a perzon identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of 4 person are those family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(7] Stamdurds amnd fnterpretations effective in the current period
The Company has adopted the following amendments in the current year:
IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (effective | January 2008)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: In July 2014, the IASE issued IFRS 9 *Financial Instruments’ {IFRS 9)
as a complete standard which replaces 1AS 39, The Standard in¢ludes requirements for recognition and
measurement, impairment, derecognition and general hedge accounting. The Company elecied, as a
pelicy choice permitted under IFRS 9, to continue to apply hedge accounting in accordance with [AS
39, unitil at the latest the requirements on macro hedging are finalised and released, The amendments to
[FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures” resulting from IFRS 9 also require new disclosures as well
as the revisien of current disclosure requirements. IFRS O is effective for annual periods beginning on
of after | January 2018,

In Ctober 2017, the IASB issued Prepayments Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments
to IFRS 9). The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019, with
early adoption permitted. The Company yearly adopted this amendment as at | January 2018,
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Crichir Siwiase Mamegenm (Cayman) Limires
Financial siarrsen for the year eaded 3] Decewber 2018

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Changes n accounting policies resulting from the adoption of [FRS 9 are generally applied
retrospectively; however the Company has taken advantage of the exemption allowing it nol to restate
comparative information for prior periods.

The adoption of this amendments does not have a material impact to the Company s financial stalements.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers: In May 2004, the IASE issued IFRS 15 *Revenue
from Contracts with Customers” (IFRS 13} IFRS 15 establishes a single, comprehensive framework
for revenue recognition, The core principle of IFRS 13 requires that an entity recognise révenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. IFRS
15 also includes disclosure requirements that enable users of financial statements 1o understand the
mature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers.
IFRS 15 replaces existing revenue guidance in IFRS.

In April 2016, the IASE issued Clarifications to IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers'
{Clarifications to IFRS 15}, The Clarifications to IFRS 15 are intended to address implementation
questions that were discussed by the Joint Transition Resource Group for Revenue Recognition on
licenses of intellectual property, identifying performance ohligations, principal versus agent application
guidance and transition.  IFRS 15 and Clarifications to IFRS 15 are effective for annual reporting
perinds heginning on or after 1 January 2018,

The Company adopted the guidance in IFRS 15 and Clarifications 1o IFRS 15 on | January 2018 using
the cumulative effect transition approach with a transition adjustment recognised in retained earnings
without restating comparatives. As a result of adoption, Company did not have any material changes
due to timing of the recognition of ¢ertain fees. In assessing whether an entity's promises 1o transfer
goods or services 1o the customer are separately identifiable, the objective is to determine whether the
nature of the promise, within the context of the contract, is 1o transfer each of those goods or services
individually or, instead, to transfér a combined item or items to which the promised goods or services
are inputs. As a result of the Company assessment of performance obligations within advisory contracts,
the Company idemified changes in the timing of the recognition of certain fees in the investment
banking capital markets business,

Changes in Accounting Policies

The 1ASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Company, None of these developments have had a materinl effect on how the Company's
results and financial position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or presented in Note
(k).

The Company has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (Note 17).
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Crwddr Suidae Mmagemery o) Limired
Flnancial srenisats fur i pvar eeded 31 December 2018

Net Interest income

2018 2017
Net Interest Income (USD)
Interest income on cash and due from banks 22,534 11,246
Interest income 22,534 11,246

All the above interest income on instruments are &l amortised cost,

Serviee Fee Income

The principal activities of the Company are the creation of trusis and the administration and
management of assets in trusis,

Revenue represents investment management fee income earmed from fellow subsidiary as follows:

2018 2017
Revenues (LS
Service Fee Income 205,000 190,000
_Total revenues 205,000 190,000
General, Administrative and Trading Expenses
2018 207
General, administrative and trading expenses (USD)

Other commission expenses {1.315) (1,315
Bank charges {545) ==
Trading expenses (1,860) (1,311
Auditor remuneration (3,117 (3,142}
Drirectors’ remuneration { 106,500) (105,033)
Professional Services {5, 590) (2.445)
Gieneral and administrative expenses (119.207) (110,620)
Total general, administrative and trading expenses {121.067) (111.931)

All of the above expenditures are payable to the Company's immediate holding company and the
immediate holding company settles such expenditures on behalf of the Company.

Taxation

There are no taxes on in¢ome or gains in the Cavman Islands and the Company has received an
undertaking from the Governor in Council of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local income,
profits and capital taxes until 18 January 2020, Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included
in these financial statements.
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Credtit Swissr Lonagesent (Caymom) Limived
Financial snrvemems for the year emied 1] Devember 2018

Uneonsolidated Structured Entities
Spomsored unconsolidated strwctured entities

The Company considers itselfl the sponser of & structured entity when either its name appears in the
name of the structured entity or in products issued by it or there is a general expectation from the market
that the Company is associated with the structured entity or the Company was involved in the design or
sel up of the structured entity and has a form of involvement with the structured emtity. For
unconsolidated structured emtities that were sponsored by the Company bul no interest was held, the
Company did not receive investment management fees from these entities during the reporting period
and no assels were transferred to these entities.

The below unconsolidated structured entities are sponsored by the Company where no management fee
is received and no interest is held by the Company as at 31 December 2018:

HOLTE Japan Income Plus Strategy Fund (For Qualified Instituwtional Investors Only)

The below unconsolidated structured entities are sponsored by the Company where a fixed annual

management fee of LUSD 5,000 (2017: USD 5,000} is received but no interest is held by the Company
asat 31 December 2008

Asia Equity Income F‘.Iu.s Etmh:gy Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Glabal REIT liscoime Alpha Fund (For Cuaiified Institutional Investors Only) i

Australian High Dividend Equity Twin Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Crnl)}
LS REIT Premium Fund (Fer Qualified Instiutional Investars Cily)

Daiwa Australian High Dividend Equity Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only}
Principal / CS Canadian Equity Inceme Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

CS Global REIT Triple Premium Fund (For Qualified Institwtional Investors Only)

LS High Dividend Equity Premivmn Fund (For Cianfified Instinnilonal Investoes Cuily)

US Small Cap Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Instinstional Investors Only)

Daiwa Emerging Local Markﬂ Bond Fured (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Us Fm!‘m-cd RJ:.IT Inl:umt Fund LFurQuaJ:ﬁad Insmutmna] Inmmfsﬂn!y}
Japan Equity P"‘m‘"“.ﬂ" Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Euro Stock Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
NB/MYAM US REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Daiwa UK High Dividend Equity Fund (For Chaalified Institutional Investors Omly)
AMP Australia Income Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Qnly)
Brazil E;quil_:,' .ﬁ.[{:hﬂ. F'und iFor Qus]iﬁnd I'nslilutil:m.a.L hwcsturs ﬂrl]:(}

Daiwa Brazilian Real Bond Fund (For Qualified insmu:n:mal Invﬁ-m Only}
US Walue Equity Concentrated Fund (For Qualified Instinstional Investoes Only)
Nissay Japan Equity Active Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
AMP Australia REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

J-REIT and Real Estate Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Shinsei European Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional [nvestors Only)
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Unconsolidated Structured Entities (continued)

Dal'-m Ammcan High Dividend Equity Quattro Income Fund {Fur Quallﬁ.td Iml:lmrma.l rn\rmm
Only) =l = el

Daiwa American REIT Quattro Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional 1nvestors Only)

U3 REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
ShEnsu World Wrap Fund Stable Type (For Qunll!‘ud In&ululmnal Investors Only)

LFS REIT Triple Engine Plius Fum {Fm' Qualified JHEIIIJ.!I!H:HIEF Imvestors ﬂnl;r'] "

Japanese Government Bond 17-20 Year Ladder Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Clniy}
Australia REIT Fund

Australia REIT Plus Fund

us Trmsur:.-' 5T Year Lﬂ.dd.e:' Fund (Fur Quallﬁtd In‘illl‘l.illﬂ'ml Invesmrs Onl_yj

Tokio Marine CAT Bond | Fund —=
Downside Control Equity Fund (For Qualified | Imtmllmml Im.e.s:m's Gnt}] —
Glabal High Dividend Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors 011ij
Mieister's Collection

The Company has not provided financial or other support to consolidated structured entities that it was
not contractually required to provide.

The Company does not currently have the intention to provide financial or other support 1o
unconsolidated structured entities that it is not contractually required to provide.

Cash and Due from Banks

Cuasl and cash equivalents comprise:

2018 2017
Cash and due from banks (LI5S0}
Cash and due from banks 1,213,367 1,016,181
Total cash and due from banks 1,213,367 1016181
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10,  Other Assets and Other Liabilities

2018 2017
ther agsets (151
Interest and fees receivable 206,373 192.723
Others — | 046, 500
Total oiher assels 06,873 299223
Jolg 2017
Orther liabilities (LIS
Interest and fees pavable 3,735 2374
otal ather liabilities 3,735 5.374
1.  Share Capital
fa) Authorised amid isswed share capital
2018 2017
Now of shares USD No. of shares UspD
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of USD | each 1 H (10D | 000,000 1,004,000 1 GO0, OO0
Mssued and fully paid up:
Ordipary sharés 735,000 7350400 135,000 735,006

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time (o time and are
entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company.  All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company s residual assets.

'Ll Capital naiagement

The Compary's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as @ going congern so that it can comtinue to provide returns for shareholders, by pricing
services commensarately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost
As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company s sources of additional capital and policies for
distribution of excess capital may also be affected by the group's capital management objectives, The
Company defines “capital” as including all components of equity.

The Company's capital structure 15 regularly reviewed and managed with due regard o the capital
management practices of the group to which the Company belongs. Adjustments are made to the capiial
structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Company or the group, to the extem
that these do not conflict with the directors” fiduciary duties lowards the Company,

The Company was nod subject to externally imposed capital requirements in the current period.
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12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure io credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Company's business. These risks are managed by the Company's financial management policies and
practices described below.

(@) Credicrisk

The Company s credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts due from group companies and cash at
bank. Credit risk is defined as risk that ene party to a financial insirument will cause a financial loss to
another party by fadling 1o discharge an obligation. Management regularly monitors its risk exposure
to ensure that its credit risk is kept to a minimal level. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance.

fi} Liguldity risk

The Company's policy is to regularly monitor its Hquidity requirements o satisfy its contractual and
reasonably foreseeahle obligations as they fall due.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, all of the Company’s financial Habilities, which includes all creditors
and accruals, are on demand or undated and are expected to be settled within three months.

{e) Inperest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk only to the extent that it earns bank interest on cash and
deposits. At 31 December 2018 and 2017, a change in interest rates would have no direct material
effect on the carrying value of the recognised assets or liabilities of the Company,

e} Forelgn currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primanily through certain transactions which give rise
to pavables that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars ("HED™).

As the HKD is pegged to the United States dollar (“USD"), the Company considers that the risk of
movements in exchange rates between the USD and the HED to be insignificant.

el Fair valies

The carrying amounts of the Company™s financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair value as at 31 December 2018,
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Material Related Party Transactions

In addition 1o the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
Company entered into the following material related party transactions

a) Related party balance sheet transactions

In addition 1o the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
Company entered into the following material related party transactions in the normal course of business

31 Decembeer 2018 3 December 3007
Parcat Fellow Tatal Parent Feflow Total

Ciroup Giroup

Companies Companies
Assete (USTH
Other assels. — 205,000 203000 — 191,632 191632
_.I | s == F0%, 4 208000 = 191,653 191,632
Limbilities mnd Equity
{USIH
Other liabilities o - — LETI 1,632 3.503
Share cagital T3S0 - T35,000 T35, (0 - T35
Todal liabilities and

35,000 — TIE 00 TIHTH 1632 TAE503

sharcholibers” equity

b) Related party revenues and expenses

3l December 2008 31 December 2017
Fellow Fellow
Group Group
Parent Companics Todal Parent  Companics Total
Oher revenues
LS
Oiher revieniies — 20500 205,040 — 15000 194,000

¢) Remuneration of Key Manigement Personnel

Remuneratios of Key Massgenstml Perioaned (1150) 2018 017
Short:term emphoyee beeefits | (W, S0 105,033
Total R hon of Key M nt Persennel TG, 300 105,033
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Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

Al 31 December 2018, the immediate parent of the Company is Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited,
which is incorperated in Hong Kong and the uliimate controlling party of the Company is Credit Suisse
Group AG, which is incorporated in Switzerland. Credit Suisse Group AG produces financial
statements available for public use.

Reclassification of Comparative Figures
The Company financials have not been re-stated.

In 2018, the Company being a financial institution, has changed its presentation from current and non-
current assets! liabilities to the order of liquidity as it provides more relevant information. [n addition,
the Company has also amended the presentation of its statement of income as it provides further
information of revenues and expenses. On account of this change in presentation, the comparative
amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current vear's presentation. The presentation is now
in ling with that of similar entities within the C3 Group as it enhances the comparability of the financial
statements. Refer to 2017 financial statements for amounts of each item or class of items presented
under the erstwhile presentation.

Non-Adjusting Events after the Reporting Period

There are no material non-adjusting events for 2018,

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the LASE has issued a number of amendments and

new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
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D) (Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited)

2020 100 1.09

Intertrust N.V.

@) (Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.)
2020
8,500 1,072
1940 206(4)-2(c)(3)
®3)
2020 781
4)
2020 17,709
2001 4 2002
12

2003 3
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2020 113 6,600 123,696,178
1990
1985 2500199
1990
2000 27
2006 16
E14 4QJ +44 (0)20 7888 8888
Credit
Suisse AG 100
1990 16
50
(6) DS
2020 20
2019
DS
300
2018 12

7.4 9.5
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Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of US Municipal Bond Fund (For Qualified
Institutional Investors Only) (the "Trust™), a sub-trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at November 30, 2019, the statements of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, inall material respects, the financial
position of the Trust as at November 30, 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("'IFRS™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("'I1SAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Auditors® Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance
with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(""1ESBA Code™) together with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Trust®s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust"s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors” Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors® Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting fromerror, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Trust"s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management*"s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern. Ifwe
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors” report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors"
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events ina
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG
May 12, 2020
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the ““Company””) set
out on pages 4 to 18, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, the statement of
profit and loss and other comprehensive income and the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flow
for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2018 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standard (““IFRS”?).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (““ISAs~?”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (““IESBA Code””) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of the directors' for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the Audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince's Building

10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong
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